
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 16, 2021 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting in accordance with the Governor's 
Proclamation of Disaster Emergency regarding meetings and hearings.  The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the 
following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of August 2, 2021. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing August 19, 2021 as Aviation Day. 

3. Proclamation recognizing August 2021 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month. 

4. Proclamation recognizing August 29, 2021 as Quota of the Cedar Valley, Inc. Day. 

Special Order of Business 

5. Hearing on a complaint issued to Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a first tobacco violation. 
 
a) Oral comments. 
 
b) Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco 
Violation regarding Bani's, 2128 College Street. 

1



Page 2 of 4 

6. Hearing on a complaint issued to Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a first tobacco violation. 
 
a) Oral comments. 
 
b) Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco 
Violation regarding Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 

7. Hearing on a complaint issued to Prime Mart 1, 2323 Main Street, for a first tobacco violation. 
 
a) Oral comments. 
 
b) Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco 
Violation regarding Prime Mart 1, 2323 Main Street. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

8. Receive and file the resignation of Lindsay Pieters as a member of the Housing Commission. 

9. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Anne Bonsall Hoekstra, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022. 
b) Toni Wilson Wood, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2022. 
c) Leslie Prideaux, Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2027. 

10. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 2, 2021 relative to the following item: 
a) Downtown Zoning Code – Parking Requirements for Private Property. 

11. Approve the following Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreements: 
a) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, First tobacco violation. 
b) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, First tobacco violation. 

12. Approve a request for a temporary sign at 7213 Nordic Drive, September 12-16, 2021. 

13. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine – renewal. 
b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
g) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
h) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 
i) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 27-28, September 4-5 & September 10-11, 
2021) 
j) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 27-30, 2021) 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Administrative Policy No. 7. 

15. Resolution approving and accepting a Local Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services Grant 
for the purchase of firefighting turnout gear. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an extension of an Agreement for Custodial 
Services with Fresh Start Cleaning Solutions, Inc. relative to providing custodial services for city 
buildings from September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2024. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement for Water Resource 
Investigations with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station. 

18. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of OEL Construction Services, 
Inc., in the amount of $181,492.08, being the only bid received for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
Project. 

19. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Blacktop Service Company, 
in the amount of $161,988.49, being the only bid received for the 2021 Seal Coat Project.  

20. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of OEL Construction Services, Inc. for the 
2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton’s Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 
2021 Permeable Alley Project. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Cobalt Contracting, L.C. for the 2021 
Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project.  

23. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Cobalt Contracting, L.C. for the 2021 
Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 4. 

24. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Owen Contracting, Inc. for the Cyber 
Lane Extension Project. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Service/Product Agreement with AMPERAGE 
Marketing relative to FY22 digital advertising for the Tourism & Visitor Bureau. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with the Iowa 
Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funding Project Delivery for FY22 (FFY2021). 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with the Iowa 
Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for Home Investment Partnerships Program 
(HOME) Funding Project Delivery for FY22 (FFY2021). 

28. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for parking 
improvements at 2415 Franklin Street. 

29. Resolution setting September 7, 2021 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinance relative to establishing the CD-DT, Downtown 
Character District. 

30. Resolution setting September 7, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning of all 
property within the defined boundaries of the Downtown Character District from current zoning 
classifications and placing the same in the CD-DT, Downtown Character District. (contingent upon 
approval of previous item) 

Allow Bills and Claims 

31. Allow Bills and Claims of August 16, 2021. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 2, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:03 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 
A moment of silence was observed in memory of former Councilmember Vernon 
Kolpek. 

 
53426 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of July 19, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously.  

   
  Mayor Green announced that Special Presentations would occur prior to Public 

Forum. 
 
53427 - Mayor Green read a proclamation recognizing August 8-14, 2021 as National 

Health Center Week and People’s Community Health Clinic CEO Christine Kemp 
commented. 

 
53428 - Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, commented on residential parking in the 

downtown area and the need for better management of public parking. 
 
53429 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 23, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a continuation of the public hearing on the proposed 
plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 CDBG 
Sidewalk Infill Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file.  

53430 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project and acquisition. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer 
Wicke provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53431 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,474, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,474 duly passed and adopted. 

  
53432 -  Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 23, 2021, this 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 Seal Coat Project.  
It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the proof of publication 
of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

53433 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Tolan provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project.  There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53434 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,475, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 Seal Coat Project, be adopted. Following due consideration by 
the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,475 duly passed and adopted. 

  
53435 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 23, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 Street Patching 
Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

53436 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Tolan provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project.  There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53437 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,476, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 Street Patching Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,476 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53438 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2992, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Viking Road, be passed upon its 
third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

#2992 duly passed and adopted. 
 
53439 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the rules requiring 

Ordinance #2993 be considered at three separate meetings, be suspended. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. 

 
      It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2993, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to parking restrictions in municipal parking lots, be passed upon its third 
& final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr. Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2993 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
53440- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the resignation of Craig Schwerdtfeger as a member of the 
Community Center & Senior Services Board. 

 Receive and file the Work Session minutes of July 19, 2021 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Northern Cedar Falls Drainage. 
b) Human Rights Commission-Joint Meeting.  

 Receive and file the Departmental Monthly Reports of June, 2021. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – 
renewal. 
b) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine – renewal. 
c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 
Main Street, Class B liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
g) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E liquor – 
renewal. 
h) Fast Track Racing, 100 Block of Clay Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 
5-day permit. 

         Motion carried unanimously. 

53441 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #22,477, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Carlson Dettmann Consulting for administration of civil 
service testing. 

 Resolution #22,478, approving and authorizing submission of an application for 
American Rescue Plan (ARP) funding to the National Endowment for the Arts for 
marketing, artist fees & equipment, and collection registration for the Hearst 
Center of the Arts. 

 Resolution #22,479, in support of a grant application to the Otto Schoitz 
Foundation for the Cedar River Recreation Project. 

 Resolution #22,480, in support of a Resource Enhancement and Protection 
(REAP) grant application to the Iowa Department of Natural Resources for the 
Cedar River Recreation Project. 

 Resolution #22,481, approving and authorizing an Amendment to an Entitlement 
Community Development Block Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority relative to Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 Resolution #22,482, approving and accepting two Temporary Easements for 
construction, in conjunction with the FFY20-21 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

 Resolution #22,483, approving and authorizing execution of a Community 
Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Subrecipient Agreement with Iowa 
Heartland Habitat for Humanity for the use of FY2021 federal HOME funds 
relative to the acquisition and rehabilitation of 913 Bluff Street. 

 Resolution #22,484, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Cobalt Contracting, L.C., in the amount of $157,876.17 for the 
2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project.  

 Resolution #22,485, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Cobalt Contracting, L.C., in the amount of $57,766.37 for the 2021 
Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 4.  

 Resolution #22,486, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Benton's Sand and Gravel, Inc., in the amount of $102,915.60 for 
the 2021 Permeable Alley Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,477 through #22,486 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53442 -   It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that a resolution rescinding 
Resolution #22,201, being a resolution approving and adopting public meeting 
protocols during the COVID-19 pandemic, be adopted. City Attorney Rogers 
provided an explanation of the proposed resolution. Following questions and 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding and Dunn, and responses by 
Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Sires. Nay: Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Dunn.  Motion failed.  

 
53443 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that the bills and claims of 

August 2, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

    
53444 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah to refer to the Committee of 

the Whole the feasibility of adding a full-time Human Rights position on staff. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Harding, deBuhr, 
Darrah, Kruse and Miller, and response by City Attorney Rogers, the motion 
carried 6-1, with deBuhr voting Nay. 

 
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that city staff develop 

guidelines for ending public participation in public meetings by electronic means. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53445 -   City Administrator Gaines announced that updated policies may be coming out 

due to rising COVID-19 numbers. 
 
53446 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss 
strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation 
is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation; and Property Acquisition per 
Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale of particular real 
estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to 
increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or 
reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that property.  Upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye:  Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:42 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 8:43 P.M.  
 
53447 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:44 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 

AVIATION DAY 
August 19, 2021  

 

WHEREAS, National Aviation Day was established by presidential proclamation in 

1939 by President Franklin D. Roosevelt to celebrate the development of aviation; and   

 

WHEREAS, since that time, Aviation Day has been promoted and celebrated 

nationwide through air shows,   

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. aerospace community has directly and indirectly contributed to 

economic prosperity and national security for the past century; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Valley is home to the Waterloo Regional Airport, a towered, 

full-service airport that enables residents to easily access commercial air travel for 

work and leisure; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Waterloo Airport and Livingston Aviation provide invaluable services 

to the General Aviation community, and foster community interest groups like the 

Experimental Aircraft Association, Young Eagles, and Civil Air Patrol; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim August 19, 2021, as Aviation Day in Cedar Falls, and encourage residents to 

develop an interest and appreciation for aviation.  

 

Signed this 14th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

10

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 
GASTROPARESIS AWARENESS MONTH 

August 2021  
 

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a paralysis of the stomach which causes extreme 

pain, nausea, vomiting, early satiety, and can lead to serious complications 

such as malnourishment, dehydration, extreme weight loss, overwhelming 

fatigue, a severe decrease in quality of life, and in some cases, even death; and  

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a chronic illness affecting more than 5 million 

people in the United States, yet public awareness and medical understanding 

of this condition is severely lacking; and 

WHEREAS, no known cure exists for Gastroparesis, and the few treatment 

options available can lead to even more serious complications such as sepsis; and  

WHEREAS, those affected by Gastroparesis seek more research, additional 

treatment options and effective medications, better patient support, and hope 

for a future free of the constant suffering and pain; and 

WHEREAS, the people of Cedar Falls can benefit from increased awareness of 

the devastating effects of Gastroparesis for the good of public health and to 

better support those inflicted with this disorder; 

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

designate August 2021 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month in Cedar Falls, 

and I do hereby encourage residents to learn about Gastroparesis and to seek 

out ways to support our neighbors who suffer from this debilitating illness.  

Signed this 30th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 11

Item 3.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUOTA OF THE CEDAR VALLEY, INC. DAY 
August 29, 2021  

 

WHEREAS, Quota of the Cedar Valley, Inc. was founded in 1926 as Quota of Waterloo, 

and is a non-profit organization to promote literacy, assist individuals with hearing 

and speech impediments, and to provide humanitarian service to those in need; and   

 

WHEREAS, Quota of the Cedar Valley provides Quota Cares Bears to all area hospitals 

and other medical providers to comfort children and adults experiencing trauma; and    

 

WHEREAS, Quota of the Cedar Valley sponsors the “Cops ‘n’ Kids” reading program to 

encourage positive relationships between police officers and youth, and to ensure 

children can explore their full potential through literacy and education, and since 

1926 has provided nearly 73,000 books to Cedar Valley children and adults; and 

 

WHEREAS, Quota of the Cedar Valley provides extensive services and financial 

support to Exceptional Persons, the Job Foundation, Catholic Worker House, 

Northeast Iowa Food Bank, the Boys and Girls Club, Love, INC., the YWCA, Salvation 

Army, and other worthy organizations, and $13,000 in annual UNI scholarships ; and 

 

WHEREAS, on Sunday, August 29th, Quota of the Cedar Valley will host its 71st Brunch 

fundraiser at the Waterloo UAW Hall (2615 Washington Street) from 9:30am to 

12:30pm, with dine-in and carry-out service; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim August 29, 2021, as Quota of the Cedar Valley, Inc. Day in Cedar Falls, and 

encourage residents to support Quota’s fundraising and community service efforts.  

 

Signed this 4th day of August, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

12

Item 4.



13

Item 5.



14

Item 5.



15

Item 5.



16

Item 5.



17

Item 5.



18

Item 6.



19

Item 6.



20

Item 6.



21

Item 6.



22

Item 6.



23

Item 7.



24

Item 7.



25

Item 7.



26

Item 7.



27

Item 7.



Lindsay Pieters 

202 Highland Boulevard 

Waterloo, Iowa 50703 

 

August 6, 2021 

 

Stephanie Sheetz 

Director of Community Development 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

Stephanie, 

This letter serves as my formal resignation from the Cedar Falls Housing Commission. 

I have moved to Waterloo. 

Thank you for the opportunity to learn more about how the commission can help citizens of Cedar Falls.  

 

All the best, 

Lindsay Pieters 

28

Item 8.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: August 4, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Art and Culture Board – Member Appointments 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-133: Art and Culture Board 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

appoint the following individuals to  the Art and Culture Board: 

 

 Ms. Anne Bonsall Hoekstra – Filling vacancy of a term ending 7/1/2022 

 Ms. Toni Wilson Wood – Filling vacancy of a term ending 7/1/2022 

 

2. Once appointed, these two individuals will be eligible for re-appointment to a regular four-

year term.  

 

3. The Selection Panel for these appointments consisted of Council Member Frank Darrah 

(Chair of the Community Relations & Planning Committee), Kate Brennan Hall (President 

of the Art & Culture Board) and Stephanie Sheetz (Director of Community Development), 

with Heather Skeens as staff liaison.  

 

4. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above appointments. 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

 Director of Community Development 

Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

### 
29

Item 9.



 

30

Item 9.



31

Item 9.



32

Item 9.



33

Item 9.



34

Item 9.



35

Item 9.



36

Item 9.



37

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: August 11, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Appointment to Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-448: Utilities Board of Trustees 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I hereby appoint Ms. Leslie Prideaux to the Cedar Falls 

Utilities Board of Trustees for a six year term beginning on September 1, 2021 and ending 

on August 31, 2027.  

 

2. I especially wish to thank the Selection Panel, consisting of Council Member Mark Miller, 

(Chair of the Public Works Committee), MaraBeth Soneson (Utilities Board Vice Chair), 

City Administrator Ron Gaines and CFU General Manager Steve Bernard for their excellent 

work to ensure a fair and unbiased selection process. 

 

3. As required by the City Council, this appointee will appear before the Committee of the 

Whole on August 16, 2021 to answer any questions you may have. 

 

4. Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Encl: (1) Leslie Prideaux General Application and Candidate Questionnaire 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  CFU General Manager 

   

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

38

Item 9.



GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall  
at (319) 273-8600 with questions.  The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: …………………………...........…   ……     …………................……...………...   Gender:  ………...   Date: …………….……… 
First  MI  Last 

Home Address: …………………………………………………….………….……  Home Phone: ………….……………………………..... 

Work Address:  ……………………………………………………………..……....    Work Phone: ………………………….………………. 

E-mail Address: …………………………………………………….……………….     Cell Phone:  ………………………….………………. 

Employer: …………………………………….…………………… Position/Occupation: ………………..…………………………..……… 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: ……………………………… City Ward: ……………          ❑ I have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS:  Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards 
❑ Art and Culture Board ❑ Human Rights Commission
❑ Board of Adjustment ❑ Library Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Appeals ❑ Parks & Recreation Commission
❑ Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals ❑ Planning & Zoning Commission
❑ Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals ❑ Historic Preservation Commission ❑ Utilities Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals

❑ Board of Rental Housing Appeals
❑ Civil Service Commission
❑ Community Center & Senior Services Board
❑ Health Trust Fund Board

❑ Housing Commission ❑ Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city, 
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable). 

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications. 

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make? 

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of 
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations 
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service. 

Leslie J Prideaux F 3/31/2021

3110 Pendleton Drive 319-404-2381

205 Commons 319-273-3093

leslieprideaux@gmail.com 319-404-2381

University of Northern Iowa AVP Alumni Relations

7 years 3 ■

■

I currently serve as the Chair of the Visitors and Tourism Board (member since 7/2016), a member of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (member since 4/2019), and Treasurer of Grow Cedar Valley (member 
since 7/2018). Professionally, I work for the University of Northern Iowa and by virtue of my position have 
close working relationships with the administration and all departments.

I am uniquely qualified to serve on the CFU Board of Trustees due to my wide-breadth of service to Cedar 
Falls, the Cedar Valley and my strong tie to the university. UNI is central to the city of Cedar Falls and 
represents a large constituent body I feel is not currently represented on the CFU Board of Trustees. I am also 
skilled in strategic planning (ideation, visioning, and overall process) and consensus building.

I would like to serve the city of Cedar Falls. I am very skilled at navigating challenging issues where there are 
opposing viewpoints. I believe I can serve as a person who seeks first to understand, listen, and learn before 
making decisions and judgements on projects. I believe CFU is a huge asset to Cedar Falls and greatly 
increases the quality of life for the community. I'd like to be a part of shaping its growth and future.

I currently serve on the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Visitors and Tourism Board. My term for 
both end this summer. I am willing to drop the necessary board(s) in order to join the CFU Board of Trustees.

                          Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com 
                    or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
          You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs. 

39

Item 9.



 UTILITIES BOARD OF TRUSTEES CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 

  Name:       Leslie Prideaux                                                                                           Date:               July 2, 2021 
                  

Yes     No Can you attend Board of Trustee meetings on the 2nd Wednesday of the month at 2:00pm at the CFU Office?      

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Utilities Board of Trustees?  

I am interested in serving on the Utilities Board of Trustees for three primary reasons: The first is to provide a strong connection 

between CFU and the university. I have strong relationships on campus and can provide connections, perspectives, and the 

potential to develop/sustain strong relationships with one of the city’s largest employers. The second is that I am a strong 

proponent of partnering with community members to decrease our overall need for energy. I am excited to be a part of an 

organization that has already decreased our overall CO2 emissions by 20 percent this past decade and I look forward to working 

to decrease this amount even further. The final reason is that I want to provide a service to my community. I am a leader capable 

of bridging chasms, building consensus, and pushing our community to be the leader we know it can be in utility services.  

 

2. How should energy conservation influence the decisions of Cedar Falls Utilities?  

 

Energy conservation is one key part of an overall equation of utility services. It is balanced with understanding the energy needs 

of the community, decreasing energy consumption, and identifying alternative energy methods that decrease our carbon footprint. 

We are citizens of the world in an environmental crisis and it is our responsibility to wisely consume precious resources. Our duty 

to our constituents is to meet their energy needs—yes, but to also educate and inform citizens of our collective responsibility to 

reduce our footprint. We can do this together with responsible, gradual movements to a more sustainable model of energy 

production. 

 

3. As a City-owned entity, should CFU annually transfer funds to the City equal to the fees charged to 
private utilities for property taxes, franchise fees, right-of-way usage, and stockholder dividends? 
 
I feel that I need more information to appropriately answer this question. Before taking a stand on any issue, I 
would want to understand the situation from all angles. Here are the questions I would like answered prior to 
forming an opinion:  How have funds been handled in the past? Have there been issues with previous 
agreements? What issues would this potentially cause for CFU or the City? What are the overall goals and 
desired outcomes of this arrangement?  

 
4. The Trustees provide operational and fiduciary oversight for CFU; what is your experience in 

personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation, and risk management?  
 
I have expansive experience in personnel management, financial operations and oversite, business operation, and risk 
management. My position at the University of Northern Iowa requires that I manage staff, volunteers, and board members. I 
am also responsible for more than a $1 million in investments and an operating budget of nearly $500,000. In addition to my 
professional role, I serve as the treasurer for Grow Cedar Valley overseeing the finances of Grow Cedar Valley, Tech Works, 
and LeaderValley. In both my professional and volunteer capacities I regularly oversee business operations and risk 
management. My experience in litigation is limited, however, I have worked with both university and private attorneys 
navigating a few issues including dissolving former organizations, creating an LLC, and drafting service agreements. 
 
 

5. Cedar Falls Utilities competes directly with private sector utilities and communications companies. 
When is it appropriate for governmental entities to compete against private corporations? 

 
I believe it is appropriate for governmental entities to compete against private corporations to create market competition leveling 
prices for needed services. CFU provides services and products that enhance the overall quality of life for the residents of 
Cedar Falls. Citizens may opt to select competing private services, but CFU provides options that are affordable and 
accessible. It is critical for utilities provided by CFU to be affordable and accessible for all residents. 

 
 

6. Please list your organizational and relational connections which might pose potential conflicts of 

interest for items under consideration by the Utilities Board of Trustees. 
 Planning and Zoning Commission 

 Cedar Falls Tourism Board 

 Grow Cedar Valley 

 University of Northern Iowa 

 

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:  
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126, 

or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment. 

40

Item 9.

mailto:boards@cedarfalls.com


Committee of the Whole 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

August 2, 2021 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 6:05 p.m. on August 2, 2021, with the following 
Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers Frank Darrah, 
Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller and Dave Sires.  Staff 
members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person and 
teleconferenced in. 
 
Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda, 
Downtown Zoning Code – Parking Requirements for Private Property. 
 
Mayor Green introduced Planning and Community Services Manager Karen Howard.  Ms. 
Howard explained the focus of tonight’s discussion:  Parking requirements proposed in the 
Downtown Zoning Code (parking requirements when new development is proposed and parking 
located on private property) and not discussing City-owned or public parking lots.  Ms. Howard 
introduced Ms. Mary Madden and Mr. Geoff Ferrell from Ferrell Madden to present by 
teleconference.  Mr. Ferrell provided an overview, including supporting slides, of the intent of the 
proposed parking requirements and the goal to encourage more development similar to the 
Main Street parkade area as expressed in the adopted Downtown Vision Plan..  Ms. Madden 
provided a more detailed overview of the proposed parking requirements; an explanation of the 
benefits of shared parking with supporting slides; and noted how the recent parking study 
revealed significant available parking during peak times in private lots. She noted the goal for 
new development moving forward is to require a small percentage of their parking to be shared 
when it is not being used by on-site businesses or residential tenants. She noted how requiring 
parking beyond what is needed drives up residential rents and commercial lease rates, so in a 
downtown setting a shared parking system reduces costs for everyone and allows land to be 
used more efficiently for revenue producing uses that also increase the tax base. She also 
noted how they arrived at the proposed requirements through  community input; stakeholder 
interviews; review of the parking study, on-site observation; and review of shared parking and 
parking requirements in other communities.    
 
Mayor Green opened Council discussion. 
 
Mayor Green asked Attorney Rogers if shared parking is added in as a requirement in the City 
code through the zoning ordinance; if council decides they want to change that would the 
buildings that applied and developed be grandfathered in?  Attorney Rogers stated this would 
be grandfathered in. 
 
Councilmember Kruse asked for clarification of the Viking Pump agreement.  Attorney Rogers 
will provide Councilmembers with documentation of the Viking Pump agreement and include the 
City’s liability coverage. 
 
Councilmember deBuhr expressed parking concerns on the negative impact and more traffic in 
adjacent neighborhoods.  Ms. Howard stated that is not the intention to cause spillover parking, 
but rather to right size the parking requirements based on the observed parking in the downtown 
area for residential development so there is enough, but not too much that is then sitting there 
empty much of the time; there is evidence from the parking study that the current parking 
requirement of one parking space per bedroom downtown is more than is needed.  The 
observed parking indicate that the current parking requirements may be set too high for 
Downtown Cedar Falls.  Councilmember deBuhr asked for clarification on a ½ parking stall.  Ms. 
Howard explained that the requirement is calculated for the entire project and then any fraction 
is rounded to the nearest whole number. Ms. deBuhr asked about a project with only Ms. 

41

Item 10.



Madden reiterated this is a minimum requirement and a developer can always add more parking 
stalls to ensure their project is successful. 
 
Councilmember Kruse expressed concerns regarding residents parking on State Street and 
disagrees with the ¾ per bedroom requirement.  Kruse would prefer to have one stall per 
bedroom.  Councilmember Harding stated that parking downtown is complex and he would not 
rent from a location that didn’t have adequate parking stalls, but he has not heard any 
complaints from residents downtown that they do not have adequate parking, but only from 
commercial businesses and with the new shared parking requirement this will create more 
parking for commercial customers, so is supportive of the change.    
 
Councilmember Sires expressed concerns about the shared parking and requiring existing 
businesses to share their parking lots.  Ms. Howard explained that the new shared parking 
requirements will only apply to new development or re-development. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:57 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

42

Item 10.



43

Item 11.



44

Item 11.



45

Item 11.



46

Item 11.



47

Item 11.



48

Item 11.



49

Item 11.



50

Item 11.



51

Item 11.



52

Item 11.



53

Item 11.



54

Item 11.



55

Item 11.



56

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: August 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: Temporary Sign Request 
 Randall’s Bull Sign – Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive. 
  
This office received the attached request to place the Randall’s Bull Sign at 7213 Nordic 
Drive. Attached is a letter of permission from the Sales Manager of Hilton Garden Inn 
Cedar Falls 
granting permission 
to place the bull 
sign for a week 
during the VGM 
Heartland 
Conference from 
September 12th-
16th, 2021.   
 
The sign will be a 
large bull with a 
typical changeable-
letter sign on 
wheels. The sign 
will display a welcoming message for the conference and will be located in the parking 
lot by the building as shown in the photograph above. 
The sign will be placed by the building, over 300 feet 
away from the right-of-way.      
 
The Planning and Community Services Division 
recommends approval to display the temporary bull sign 
at 7213 Nordic Drive, from September 12-16, 2021 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, 
please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director  
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
        Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

Location of Sign 

57

Item 12.



To the City of Cedar Falls: 

The Hilton Garden Inn Cedar Falls authorizes the Randall’s cow to be in our parking lot from Sunday, 
September 12th to Thursday, September 16th, 2021.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Molly Schlader 
Sales Manager
Hilton Garden Inn Cedar Falls
319‐859‐3853

58

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  August 9, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine – renewal. 

b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

e) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

f) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

g) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

h) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 

i) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 27-28, September 4-5 & September 
10-11, 2021) 

j) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 27-30, 2021) 

 

59

Item 13.



Administrative Policy No. 07  

 

Subject:  City Council Meeting Procedures 

 

Adopted:  01/28/91 Amended: 04/2003; 10/2006; 12/2013, 

09/15/2014, 10/06/2014, 03/07/2016, 03/06/2017, 04/03/2017, 
04/16/2018, 02/01/2021, 05/03/2021, 08/16/2021  

 

 
Introduction: 
 

Ordinance No. 566, adopted on March 25, 1927, establishes the rules of conduct for 
Cedar Falls City Council meetings and the passage of motions, resolutions and 
ordinances. 
 

Purpose: 
 

This policy is intended to describe the steps necessary to comply with the rules of 
conduct described by ordinance. 
 

Procedure: 
Part I.  General Provisions 

 
Rule 1.  Scope of rules.  These rules shall govern the conduct of the council and 

shall be interpreted to insure fair and open deliberations and decision-making. 
 

Rule 2.  Applicability of Robert’s Rules of Order.  In all cases not provided for by 
the Cedar Falls code of Ordinances, or not specifically provided for in these rules, 
Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern all points of order arising during a city council 
meeting, but failure to comply with such rules shall not affect the legality of any action of 
the council in any manner or to any extent. 

 
Rule 3.  Matters not covered. Any matter of order or procedure not covered by 

these rules shall be referred to the presiding officer, who shall decide the matter with the 
assistance and advice of the city attorney or his/her representative in conformity with 
the purpose of these rules in a fair and expeditious manner.  The decision of the 
presiding officer may be reversed by a majority vote of the council. 
 

Rule 4.  Interpretation.  These rules are intended to supplement and shall be 
interpreted to conform to the statutes of the State of Iowa and the ordinances of the City 
of Cedar Falls.    
 

 

60

Item 14.



 2 

Part II.  Time and Place of Meeting 
 

Rule 5.  Regular meetings.  Regular meetings of the Cedar Falls City Council 
shall be held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 P.M. in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, except when Monday falls on a legal holiday, then the meeting shall 
be held at the regular hour on the next succeeding day not a holiday, provided, 
however, council may, by resolution, reschedule any regular meeting to another date 
and time, or may cancel a meeting.  All hearings shall be scheduled for 7:00 P.M. the 
day of a regular meeting.   (Sec. 2-45(a)) 
 

Rule 6.  Special meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the mayor or by 
any four or more councilmembers.  To call for a special meeting any four or more 
councilmembers may separately file a request with the city clerk.  Such request shall 
include the agenda item(s) for the special meeting.  The agenda for the special meeting 
shall specify the day, hour and subject of the meeting and shall be posted in City Hall 
and notice given to the media 24 hours in advance.  (Sec. 2-45(b)) 
 

Rule 7.  Quorum.  A majority of all members elected to the City Council shall 
constitute a quorum for transaction of business.  (Sec. 2-46)  Members of the City 
Council may attend City Council meetings via videoconference, as long as a quorum (4 
members) is present in person. 
 

Part III.  Agenda 
 

Rule 8.  Preparation of agenda.  Prior to each council meeting the city clerk shall 
prepare an agenda that contains all items the council anticipates acting upon at the 
meeting.  The order of business shall be as follows: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes. 
b) Agenda Revisions. 
c) Special Presentations, if necessaryPublic Forum. 
d) Public ForumSpecial Presentations, if necessary. 
e) Special Order of Business, primarily public hearings and related actions. 
f) Old Business. 
g) New Business: 

1) Consent Calendar. 
2) Resolution Calendar. 
3) New ordinances that do not require public hearings. 

h) Bills and Payroll. 
i) City Council Referrals. 
j) City Council Updates. 
k) Executive Session, if necessary. 
l) Adjournment. 

 
Rule 9.  Consent Agenda.  In preparing an agenda, the city clerk shall separately 

designate items as Consent Calendar or Resolution Calendar, which may be acted 

61

Item 14.



 3 

upon by the council under Rule 61.  These items shall consist of routine non-
controversial items that in the city clerk's determination can be appropriately considered 
in bulk at the council meeting or a listing of resolutions which are subject to council 
action on that date. 
 

Rule 10.  Hearings and Special Order of Business.  The city clerk shall prepare 
as a separate portion of the agenda a schedule of hearings and special presentations or 
items of business. 
 

Rule 11.  Agenda deadline.  Any member of the council, the city administrator, 
city attorney, city clerk, or departmental director, with the mayor's approval, may have 
an item included upon the agenda by requesting the city clerk to include the item by 
5:00 P.M. on the Monday one week prior to the council meeting.  Agendas and meeting 
materials will be available to the public at 5:00 P.M. on the Wednesday preceding the 
council meeting.  
 

Rule 12.  Extra items.  Items requested or filed after 5:00 P.M. on the Monday 
one week prior to a council meeting shall not be included upon the agenda unless the 
mayor shall deem the item of sufficient urgency to warrant immediate council action. 

 
Rule 13.  Sponsor required.  The city clerk shall not place upon the agenda any 

matter for reconsideration unless sponsored by the mayor, a councilmember who voted 
on the originally prevailing side or a council member who was absent at the time of the 
original action (Rules 40, 52 and 53 also address motions to reconsider).  The renewal 
of a previous motion that is still applicable shall be placed upon the agenda of a 
subsequent council meeting upon the sponsorship of any member of the council. 
 

Rule 14.  Mayor withdrawal of items.  The mayor may withdraw any item prior to 
the council meeting, but in withdrawing the item shall state to the council the reason 
therefore.  An item withdrawn by the mayor may nonetheless, in the discretion of the 
council, be acted upon in its regular order. 
 

Rule 15.  Council action to defer, continue or not act.  A member of the council 
may not withdraw any item prior to the start of council meetings, provided however, a 
council member wishing council to defer action or continue an item has a right to have a 
motion to continue, defer or not act on any item considered before any other action 
which council may consider. 
 

Rule 16.  Public agenda requests.  Someone from the public may request to 
have an item placed on the agenda by filing such request in writing with the mayor prior 
to 5:00 P.M. on the Monday one week prior to the regular council meeting.  The mayor 
may either grant the request by placing it on the next agenda or deny the request for 
stated reasons, conveyed to the requester.  Anyone may utilize the Public Forum 
portion of the meeting agenda to raise any issue not on the formal agenda, which issue 
shall then be governed by the rules set forth in Part X. 
 

62

Item 14.



 4 

Any visual aids that a speaker desires to have displayed during City Council or 
Committee meetings must be submitted to the City Clerk by 10:00 a.m. on the day of 
the Council meeting for Mayor review and approval.  
 

Part IV.  Conduct of Meetings.  
 

Rule 17.  Roll call.  Before proceeding with the business of the council, the city 
clerk shall call the roll call of councilmembers present and enter those names in the 
minutes.  The city clerk shall determine the presence of a quorum as required by law 
and these rules. 
 

Rule 18.  Call to order.  The mayor or mayor pro tem shall call the meeting to 
order at the appointed hour.  In the absence of the mayor or mayor pro tem, the city 
clerk shall call the meeting to order and a temporary presiding officer shall then be 
selected under Rule 19. 
 

Rule 19.  Presiding officer.  The mayor, or in the mayor's absence or incapacity 
the mayor pro tem, shall be the presiding officer at all council meetings.  If both the 
mayor and mayor pro tem are absent, the most senior council member present shall 
preside.  In the event two or more members equally possess the greatest seniority, then 
the eldest person among them shall preside. 
 

Rule 20.  Control of discussion.  The presiding officer shall control discussion of 
the council on each agenda item to assure full participation in accordance with these 
rules.   
 

Rule 21.  Mayor to decide question of priority of business.  A question relating to 
the priority of business shall be decided by the mayor without debate.   (Sec. 2-104) 
 

Rule 22.  Order required when question is being put.  While the mayor is putting 
the question, no one shall walk across or out of the council room.   (Sec. 2-105) 
 

Rule 23.  Speaking on questions restricted.  No councilmember shall speak more 
than twice on one question before the council without leave of the council, nor more 
than once in any case until every member choosing to speak shall have spoken.   (Sec. 
2-106) 

 
Rule 24.  Mayor to recognize speaker.  When two or more councilmembers rise 

at once to speak at a council meeting, the mayor shall name the member who is to 
speak.   (Sec. 2-108) 

 
Rule 25.  Calling member to order; appeal.  A member of the council called to 

order while speaking at a council meeting shall immediately cease speaking unless 
permitted to explain.  If there is no appeal, the decision of the chair shall be conclusive, 
but if the member appeals the decision of the chair, the council shall decide the 
question without debate.   (Sec. 2-109) 

63

Item 14.



 5 

 
Rule 26.  Order required while others are speaking.  While a member is 

speaking, no member shall hold any private discourse (Sec. 2-110) 
 
Rule 27.  Motions to be seconded; when to be written.  No motion shall be put or 

debated unless seconded.  When a motion is seconded, it shall be stated by the mayor 
before debate and every motion shall be reduced to writing if required by the mayor or 
any councilmember.   (Sec. 2-111) 

 
Rule 28.  Gaining the floor.  Every councilmember, previous to speaking, shall 

address the mayor, and say, "Mr./Madam Mayor," and shall not proceed with remarks 
until recognized and named by the chair.  (Sec. 2-107) 

 
Rule 29.  Order of consideration of agenda.  Except as otherwise provided in 

these rules, each agenda item shall be considered in the numerical order assigned by 
the city clerk.  Each agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, 
or city clerk, for purposes of discussion and consideration.  To announce an item, it 
shall be sufficient to identify the item by the number assigned by the city clerk, unless 
greater specificity is requested by some person in attendance.  This rule shall not apply 
to consideration of items under Rule 61 or Rule 62. 
 

Rule 30.  Discussion.  A councilmember shall speak only after being recognized 
by the presiding officer.  A councilmember recognized for a specific purpose shall limit 
remarks to that purpose.  A councilmember, after being recognized, shall not be 
interrupted except by the presiding officer to enforce these rules. 
 

Rule 31.  Presiding officer's right to enter into discussion.  The mayor (or other 
presiding officer) may enter into any discussion. 
 

Rule 32.  Limit on remarks.  Each councilmember shall limit his or her remarks to 
a reasonable length. 
 

Rule 33.  Presiding officer's right to speak last.  The presiding officer has the right 
to close debate and speak last on any item. 
 

Rule 34.  Closing debate.  Discussion, including public participation, shall be 
closed on any item by the presiding officer with the concurrence of a majority of the 
council.  Except as provided by Rule 46, a call for the vote shall not close discussion if 
any member of the council still wishes to be heard or the presiding officer determines 
the continued participation of the public will be helpful to the council. 
 

Part V.  Public Participation 
 

Rule 35.  Public’s right to address council.  Persons other than councilmembers 
shall be permitted to address the council only upon items listed on the agenda, unless 
excluded under Part X. 

64

Item 14.



 6 

 
Rule 36.  Manner of addressing council.  A person desiring to address the council 

shall first be recognized by the presiding officer and then shall step to the podium, state 
his or her name, address, and group affiliation (if any) and speak clearly into the 
microphone. 
 

Rule 37.  Time limit on speaker remarks.  Speakers shall be limited to five 
minutes speaking time per item, unless additional time is granted by the presiding 
officer.  The presiding officer will advise the speaker when one minute remains.  Total 
speaker input on any subject under council consideration can be limited to a fixed 
period by the presiding officer.  A majority vote of the council may extend the time 
limitations of this rule. 
 

Rule 38.  Remarks of speaker to be germane.  Speaker comments must remain 
civil and be directed to the subject under consideration.  The presiding officer shall rule 
on the germaneness of speaker comments.  Speakers making comments that could be 
construed to be a personalized attack, impertinent or slanderous remarks towards 
another party shall be barred by the presiding officer from further comment before the 
council during the meeting. 
 

Part VI.  Council Action 
 

Rule 39.  Motion required.  All action requiring a vote shall be moved by a 
member of the council. 
 

Rule 40.  Motion to reconsider.  A motion to reconsider must be made by a 
council member who was on the prevailing side in the original action or by a 
councilmember absent at the time of the original action. 
 

Rule 41.  Rule 40 of these Rules notwithstanding, when less than seven 
members of the council are in attendance at a meeting and an agenda item fails to 
receive a majority of affirmative or negative votes of those in attendance, then the 
agenda item shall, upon the request of any councilmember in attendance at the 
meeting, be placed by the city clerk on the agenda for the next council meeting, and 
continued thereafter upon the agenda for subsequent meetings until it shall receive a 
majority of affirmative or negative votes of those in attendance.  In the event an item 
continued under this rule is consideration of an ordinance, the ordinance shall not be 
considered to have been read or considered for its first or any subsequent passage un-
less it shall receive four affirmative votes. 
 
 Rule 42.  Majority vote required for adoption.  No resolution or ordinance shall be 
adopted without a concurrence of a majority of all of the members of the council by call 
of the ayes and nays that shall be recorded.  Passage of a motion requires a majority 
vote of a quorum of the council.  As used in this section, “all of the members of the 
council” refers to all of the seats of the council including a vacant seat and a seat where 
the member is absent, but does not include a seat where the councilmember declines to 

65

Item 14.



 7 

vote by reason of a conflict of interest.  (Sec. 2-107)(Sec. 2-128) 
 
Rule 43.  Preferential motions. 
 
a)  When a question is under debate the only motions in order shall be: 

First  To adjourn. 
Second The previous question. 
Third  To lay on the table. 
Fourth  To postpone indefinitely. 
Fifth  To adjourn to a certain day. 
Sixth  To refer. 
Seventh To amend. 

 
b)  Such motions shall be given precedence in the order herein arranged, the first 

three (3) to be decided without debate.   (Sec. 2-116) 
 
Rule 44.  When motion to adjourn is in order.  A motion to adjourn the council 

shall be in order except: 
 

a) When a member is in possession of the floor. 
b) While the members are voting. 
c) When adjournment was the last preceding motion. 
d) When it is decided that the previous question shall be taken.   (Sec. 2-
117(a)) 

 
Rule 45.  Amendment, debate of motions to adjourn.  A motion to adjourn simply 

cannot be amended, but a motion to adjourn to a given time may be and is open to 
debate.   (Sec.2-117(b)) 
 

Rule 46.  Putting the previous question; call for vote.  When a council member 
desires to make a motion to cease debate and to proceed to a vote on the pending 
question, the member shall make a motion as follows:  "Shall the main question be now 
put?"  If this is carried, all proposed amendments and all further motions, debates and 
public participation shall be excluded, and the question put without delay.  This motion 
requires a two-thirds vote of the council members present for its adoption.   (Sec. 2-118) 
 

Rule 47.  Debate of motions to table, amendment.  A motion to lay a question on 
the table simply is not debatable, but a motion to lay on the table and publish, or with 
any other condition, is subject to amendment and debate.   (Sec. 2-119) 
 

Rule 48.  Indefinite postponement of motions.  When a motion is postponed 
indefinitely, it shall not be taken up again during the same meeting.   (Sec. 2-120) 

 
Rule 49.  Precedence of motions to refer to committee.  A motion to refer to a 

standing committee shall take precedence over a similar motion for a special 
committee.   (Sec. 2-121) 

66

Item 14.



 8 

 
Rule 50.  Motions to amend.   
a) A motion to amend an amendment shall be in order, but a motion to amend 

an amendment to an amendment shall not be entertained.  (Sec. 2-122) 
b) An amendment modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an 

amendment relating to a different subject shall not be in order.   (Sec. 2-122) 
 

Rule 51.  Motions to strike and insert.  On a motion to strike out and insert, the 
paragraph to be amended shall first be read as it stands, then the words proposed to be 
struck out and those to be inserted, and finally the paragraph as it would stand if so 
amended.   (Sec. 2-123) 
 

Rule 52.  When motion may be reconsidered; renewal of motion.  A motion may 
be reconsidered at any time during the same meeting at which the motion was made, or 
at the first meeting held thereafter.  A motion for reconsideration, being once made and 
decided in the negative, shall not be renewed before the next meeting.   (Sec. 2-124 (a)) 
 

Rule 53.  Who may move to reconsider.  A motion to reconsider must be made 
and seconded by the members who voted on the prevailing side, or by those who were 
absent and did not vote upon the motion to be reconsidered.   (Sec. 2-124 (b)) 
  

Rule 54.  Withdrawal of motions.  After a motion or resolution is stated by the 
mayor, it shall be deemed to be in the possession of the council, but may be withdrawn 
at any time before decision, but if any amendment has been proposed or adopted, it 
shall be withdrawn without the consent of the mover of such amendment.   (Sec. 2-113) 
 

Rule 55.  Duty to vote; conflict of interest.  Each councilmember who is present 
when a question is stated from the chair of the council shall vote thereon unless he/she 
is directly interested in the question, in which case he/she shall not vote.  In case any 
member refuses to vote when not excused, his/her vote shall be recorded in the 
negative.  (Sec. 2-115) 
 

Rule 56.  Applicability of Robert's Rules of Order.  In all cases not herein 
provided for, Robert's Rules of Order shall govern all points of order arising not 
governed by these rules, but failure to comply with such rules shall not affect the legality 
of any action of the council in any manner or to any extent.   (Sec. 2-129) 
 

Rule 57.  Consent required to suspend, amend rules.  The foregoing rules may 
be temporarily suspended by consent of three-fourths of the councilmembers present, 
but shall not be repealed, altered or amended unless by concurrence of two-thirds of all 
the councilmembers elected.  (Sec. 2-130) 
 

Rule 58.  No motions by presiding officer.  If the presiding officer is a 
councilmember, they shall not make a motion.   
 

Rule 59.  Division of question containing distinct propositions.  If a question in 

67

Item 14.



 9 

debate contains several distinct propositions, any member may have the same divided 
prior to the vote thereon when the sense of it requires such division.   (Sec. 2-114) 
 

Rule 60.  Separate consideration.  Except as otherwise allowed by these rules, 
each agenda item shall be voted upon separately and shall be recorded by the city 
clerk.   
 

Rule 61.  Action on Consent Agenda.  Except as herein provided, the Consent 
Agenda comprised of the Consent and Resolution Calendars shall be considered in bulk 
and voted upon in single motion or resolution.  Each councilmember shall advise the 
presiding officer of any matter on the Consent Agenda upon which he/she wishes to 
speak or to vote no.  At the time of consideration of the Consent Agenda, the presiding 
officer shall announce the items upon which councilmembers have indicated they wish 
to speak or vote no; items upon which any councilmember wishes to speak shall be 
considered separately and not as a portion of any motion calling for action upon the 
remainder of the Consent Agenda.  The city clerk, on all matters contained in the 
Resolution Calendar shall record the yes and no votes on each item separately as if 
each item had been moved and voted upon separately.  Rule 29 shall not apply here. 
 

Rule 62.  Action on multiple items.  With the consent of a majority of the council, 
Rule 60 hereof notwithstanding, the council may consider for voting purposes more than 
one item, but in such event the vote upon each item will be separately recorded by the 
city clerk noting specific yes or no votes of each councilmember on each item. 
 

Rule 63.  Consideration out of order.  With the consent of the council, any 
agenda item may be considered out of order at the request of a councilmember. 
 

Rule 64.  Recording names of moving members.  The city clerk shall record the 
name of the councilmember making each motion.   (Sec. 2-112) 
 

Rule 65.  Consideration of matters not on agenda.  Except as to matters that by 
law require the publication of notice before consideration by the council, any member of 
the council may, at the close of the regular agenda, bring a matter not on the agenda to 
the council's attention. Council may act upon such matter only if it does not conflict with 
the Iowa Open Meetings Law or may direct such matter be included upon a later 
agenda. 
 

Part VII.  Miscellaneous 
 

Rule 66.  Motions.  At any appropriate place on the agenda, any member of the 
council may make a motion for the council to act upon any matter if the motion is 
germane to the matter under consideration.   
 

Rule 67.  Applicability of rules.  These rules shall apply to the council when 
meeting in any form. 
 

68

Item 14.



 10 

Rule 68.  Hearings.  Any other rule to the contrary notwithstanding, unless 
required by statute or necessary to conform to proceedings required for a special 
purpose, a hearing shall commence when declared open by the presiding officer and 
shall close when closed by the presiding officer or by other formal action of the council. 
 

Rule 69.  Informal requests.  A member of the council, before or during the 
consideration of any matter, or in the course of a hearing, may request and receive 
information, explanations or the opinions of the mayor, city administrator, city attorney, 
city clerk or any departmental director. 
 

Part VIII.  Committee Structure 
 

Rule 70.  Appointment of committees; standing committees enumerated. All 
standing committees shall be appointed by the mayor and all special committees shall 
be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the council.  All standing com-
mittees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at the first regular 
meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, and 
the first person named on each committee shall be the chair of such committee.  (Sec. 
2-68) 

 
The following shall be the standing committees: 
 

a) Administration. 
b) Committee of the Whole. 

 
Except for matters which the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, or the express provisions 
of these rules, specifically direct be submitted to the Administration Committee, or 
except as otherwise directed by the council, it is the desire and intent of the council that 
all matters which are referred, or which are to be referred, to a committee of the council, 
shall be referred to the council’s Committee of the Whole.  
 

Rule 71.  Number of committee members. 
The standing committees of the council shall consist of all seven members, with the 
Mayor serving as non-voting chair of the committee of the whole.  All special 
committees shall consist of five members each, unless some other number is specified.   
(Sec. 2-69) 
 

Rule 72.  Procedure for committees to report.  Standing and special committees 
of the council to whom references are made, in all cases, shall report in writing the state 
of facts, with their opinion, which opinion shall be summed up in the form of an order, 
resolution or recommendation, unless otherwise ordered by the council.   (Sec. 2-71) 
 

Rule 73.  City clerk to forward papers to committees employed.  The city clerk 
shall forward all the papers to the appropriate committees and officers as soon as 
possible after the reference shall have been made.   (Sec. 2-70) 
 

69

Item 14.



 11 

Rule 74.  Acceptance of final report discharges special committees.  On the 
acceptance of a final report from a special committee of the council, the committee shall 
be considered discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered.   (Sec. 2-72) 
 

Part IX.  Ordinance Adoption 
 

Rule 75.  Ordinances to be presented in writing.  All ordinances shall be 
presented in writing before being considered by the council.  (Sec. 2-125) 
 

Rule 76.  Consideration and passage of ordinances.  Ordinances must be 
considered and voted upon for passage at three separate council meetings, unless this 
requirement is suspended by a recorded vote of not less than three-fourths of all of the 
members of the council.  ) (Sec. 2-126) 
 

Rule 77.  Procedure for passage of ordinances.  The following procedure shall be 
followed by the council in the passage of all ordinances: 
 

a) A motion to pass the ordinance upon its first consideration or a motion to 
suspend the rules requiring ordinances to be considered at three (3) 
separate council meetings. 

b) In the event the ordinance is passed upon its first consideration, the 
ordinance shall be given the second and third considerations either in 
adjourned meetings of the meeting of its passage on first reading, or at 
some following special or regular meetings of the council.   

c) In the event that a motion to suspend the rules has passed, a motion shall 
be made to adopt the ordinance upon its third and final consideration. 

d) Upon the passage of the third and final consideration of the ordinance, the 
mayor shall declare the ordinance duly passed and adopted.    

 
Rule 78.  Contents of amendments to ordinances.  An amendment to an 

ordinance must specifically repeal the ordinance, or the section, subsection, paragraph, 
or subpart to be amended, and must set forth the ordinance, section, subsection, 
paragraph, or subpart as amended.   (Sec. 2-127) 
 

Part X.  Public Participation Procedures 
  

The City of Cedar Falls encourages the attendance and participation of the public 
at its meetings.  Public participation is permitted through the four following areas: 
 

1) Anyone may address the council during the Public Forum segment of the agenda 
regarding any issue not on the agenda that is an issue exclusively related to City 
operations or business.  No formal action on the subject presented by the 
speaker may be taken by the council, other than a referral to City staff or a 
council committee or placement on an upcoming council agenda, as restricted by 
State statute.  Public Forum is not to be used as a platform for individuals 
running for elected office at any governmental level. 

70

Item 14.



 12 

2) A speaker may address the council on any public hearing item specifically listed 
on the council agenda during that portion of the public hearing when the 
presiding officer is soliciting public input. 

3) A speaker may address the council on any item listed under Old or New 
Business or under the Consent or Resolution Calendars of the council agenda. 

4) Anyone may request an item be placed on the council agenda by filing such 
request in writing with the mayor prior to 5:00 P.M. on the Monday one week 
prior to the regular council meeting.  The request shall then be processed in 
accordance with Rule 16 of the adopted City Council Meeting Procedures. 
 
However, to avoid violating adopted personnel policies, Iowa law, and Iowa 
collective bargaining laws, employees and collective bargaining groups will not 
be recognized to speak about employment related issues during City Council 
meetings.  Employees and collective bargaining groups should utilize the 
processes specifically defined and granted by Iowa Code and adopted City 
personnel policies. 

 
Public participation through any of the four areas described above shall be in 

compliance with the following rules: 
 

1) Anyone desiring to address the council shall first be recognized by the presiding 
officer and then shall step to the podium, state his or her name, address, and 
group affiliation, if applicable, the item of city council business to which the 
person desires to speak, and speak clearly into the microphone. 

2) Each speaker shall be limited to five minutes speaking time per item, unless 
additional time is granted by the presiding officer.  The presiding officer will 
advise the speaker when one minute remains.  Total speaker input on any 
subject under council consideration may be limited to a fixed period of time by 
the presiding officer.  A majority vote of the council may extend the time 
limitations imposed by this rule. 

3) Speaker comments must remain civil and be directed to the subject under 
consideration.  The presiding officer shall rule on the germaneness of speaker 
comments.  Any speaker making comments that could be construed to be a 
personalized attack, impertinent, or slanderous remarks towards another party 
shall be barred by the presiding officer from further comment before the council 
during the council meeting. 

4) No issue raised by a speaker under the rules of this Part X shall be debated by 
the City Council. 

 
 
 
(Previously #91-0001) 

71

Item 14.



72

Item 15.



73

Item 15.



74

Item 15.



75

Item 15.



76

Item 15.



77

Item 15.



78

Item 15.



79

Item 16.



80

Item 16.



81

Item 16.



82

Item 16.



83

Item 16.



84

Item 16.



85

Item 16.



86

Item 16.



87

Item 16.



88

Item 16.



89

Item 16.



90

Item 16.



91

Item 16.



92

Item 16.



93

Item 16.



94

Item 16.



95

Item 16.



96

Item 16.



97

Item 16.



98

Item 16.



99

Item 16.



100

Item 16.



101

Item 16.



102

Item 16.



103

Item 16.



104

Item 16.



105

Item 16.



106

Item 16.



107

Item 16.



108

Item 16.



109

Item 16.



110

Item 16.



111

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

 DATE: August 5, 2021 

SUBJECT: USGS Streamgaging Station for the Cedar River in Cedar Falls 
  Project No. MC-039-1653 
 
Attached is the Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for the federal 
fiscal year 2022 for the continuing support, operation, and maintenance of the 
streamgage site on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls. The agreement also includes the 
continued development of real–time stream flow data at the streamgage site. This is a 
cooperative agreement whereby the U.S. Geological Survey and the City of Cedar Falls 
cost share the operation and maintenance of the streamgage site. 
 
The streamgage is known locally as the “river gauge” and provides the stage readings 
that are the basis for the public alerts given during high water events on the Cedar 
River. The stage readings enable flood forecasts to be generated for Cedar Falls by the 
River Forecast Center of the National Weather Service. The streamgage is located on 
south side of the Highway 57/1st Street Bridge over the Cedar River. 
 
Funding for the continued operation of the streamgage was budgeted for in the 
Engineering Services Budget. 
 
It is recommended that this agreement be approved and returned to me for further 
processing.  If you have any questions or comments regarding this matter, feel free to 
contact me. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  
 

112

Item 17.



United States Department of the Interior
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 

CENTRAL MIDWEST WATER SCIENCE CENTER 
MISSOURI 

1400 Independence Rd. MS100 
Rolla, MO 65401 

ILLINOIS 
405 N. Goodwin Ave. 

Urbana, IL 61801 

IOWA 
400 S. Clinton St. Rm 269 

Iowa City, IA 52240 

July 2 , 2021 

David Wicke        
City Engineer 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street Engineering Division 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Dear Mr. Wicke: 

Attached is our standard joint-funding agreement for the operation and maintenance of one streamgaging station and 
one  on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls, IA, for the period October 1, 2021 through September 30, 
2022 in the amount of $10,360 from your agency. U.S. Geological Survey contributions for this agreement are 
$5,760 for a combined total of $16,120. Please sign and return one fully-executed original to Alex D. Arduser via 
email at aarduser@usgs.gov. 

Federal law requires that we have a signed agreement before we start or continue work. Please return the signed 
agreement by October 1, 2021. If, for any reason, the agreement cannot be signed and returned by the date shown 
above, please contact Jon Nania by phone number (319) 358-3655 or email jfnania@usgs.gov to make alternative 
arrangements. 

This is a fixed cost agreement to be billed annually via Down Payment Request (automated Form DI-1040). Please 
allow 30-days from the end of the billing period for issuance of the bill. If you experience any problems with your 
invoice(s), please contact Alex Arduser at phone number (319) 358-3656 or email at aarduser@usgs.gov.  

The results of all work performed under this agreement will be available for publication by the U.S. Geological 
Survey. We look forward to continuing this and future cooperative efforts in these mutually beneficial water 
resources studies. 

Sincerely, 

Jon F. Nania  
Deputy Director, Central Midwest WSC 

Enclosure 
 22NEJFA103 

113

Item 17.



Form 9-1366 
(May 2018) 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
U.S. Geological Survey 

Joint Funding Agreement 
FOR 

Water Resource Investigations 

Customer #: 6000001608 
Agreement #: 22NEJFA103 
Project #: NE009KT 
TIN #: 42-60038591 

 Fixed Cost Agreement  YES[ X ] NO[   ] 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the October 1, 2021, by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, Central Midwest 
Water Science Center, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the City of 
Cedar Falls party of the second part. 

The parties hereto agree that subject to the availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation, for the operation and maintenance of one streamgaging
station and one on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls, IA, herein called the program. The
USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50, and 43 USC 50b.

The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work
directly related to this program. 2(b) include In-Kind-Services in the amount of $0.00

(a) $5,760 by the party of the first part during the period 
October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 

(b) $10,360 by the party of the second part during the period 
October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 

(c) Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national programs,
in the amount of: $0

Description of the USGS regional/national program:

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be
determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties.

(e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters
between the parties.

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively
governing each party.

4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review
by an authorized representative of the party of the first part.

5. The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or
their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party of
the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement.

6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be
open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner,
either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other party.

7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon
request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

8. The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as
possible. The maps, records or reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of
the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program, and if already published by the party of the
first part shall, upon request, be furnished by the party of the first part, at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of
reproduction similar to that for which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports published by
either party shall contain a statement of the cooperative relations between the parties. The Parties acknowledge that
scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work (SOW) are subject to applicable USGS
review, approval, and release requirements, which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices
website (https://www.usgs.gov/about/organization/science-support/science-quality-and-integrity/fundamental-science-
practices).

114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



116

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I  
 
 DATE: August 6th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill  
  Project No. SW-000-3248 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, August 3rd, 2021 at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. A total of one (1) bid was received, with OEL 
Construction Services the apparent low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $175,444.86 

OEL Construction Services  $181,492.08 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $175,444.86. OEL Construction Services of 
Steamboat Rock, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $181,492.08. Attached is 
a bid tabulation for your reference. The project will be funded through a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG).  
 
Due to the funding allowed through the Community Development Block Grant the 
Walnut Street infill will be removed from this project. With the removal of the Walnut 
Street infill, approximately $32,000.00 will be subtracted from the posted bid above. The 
Walnut Street infill removal will allow for the grant to cover the entire project.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from OEL Construction Services in the 
amount of $181,492.08. On September 7th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   

117

Item 18.



Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. 46.9 $12.00 $562.80 $10.50 $492.45

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDTH L.F. 177.8 $11.00 $1,955.80 $17.50 $3,111.50

3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. 1522 $50.00 $76,100.00 $51.00 $77,622.00

4 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 135.1 $53.00 $7,160.30 $63.75 $8,612.63

5 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. 186 $34.00 $6,324.00 $35.50 $6,603.00

6 PLACE CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDE, P.C.C., CLASS "C" L.F. 177.8 $28.00 $4,978.40 $40.50 $7,200.90

7 CLASS 10 EXCAVATION C.Y. 571.65 $14.00 $8,003.10 $35.00 $20,007.75

8 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 361.3 $35.00 $12,645.50 $20.00 $7,226.00

9 SOD S.F. 16773.8 $1.70 $28,515.46 $2.25 $37,741.05

10 SURFACING, 1 INCH ROADSTONE TONS 24 $34.00 $816.00 $35.00 $840.00

11 INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. 58 $9.00 $522.00 $3.00 $174.00

12 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. 20 $25.00 $500.00 $25.00 $500.00

13 CONCRETE STAIRS, TYPE A S.F. 24.7 $45.00 $1,111.50 $64.00 $1,580.80

14 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 290 $75.00 $21,750.00 $22.00 $6,380.00

15 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $3,400.00 $3,400.00

Base Bid Total: $175,444.86 $181,492.08

OEL Construction ServicesEngineer Estimate

2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project (#7912477)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Cedar Falls IA, City of

08/03/2021 10:00 AM CDT

118

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 9, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Seal Coat - 2021 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3272 
  Bid Opening 
 

On Monday, August 9th, 2021 at 10:00 a.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2021 Seal Coat Project. A total of one (1) bid was received, with Blacktop Service 
Company the apparent low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $143,756.90 

Blacktop Service Company $161,988.49 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $143,756.90. Blacktop Service Company of 
Allison, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $161,988.49. Attached is a bid tab 
for your reference. 
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Blacktop Service Company in the 
amount of $161,988.49. On September 7th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 

 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

119

Item 19.



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: SEAL COAT - 2021

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3272

BID OPENING: August 9, 2021 (1)
DEPARTMENT OF  PUBLIC WORKS

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 Surface Preparation S.Y. 30417.00 0.30$          9,125.10$      0.40$             12,166.80$    
2 Seal Coat, Streets S.Y. 29018.00 2.20$          63,839.60$    2.23$             64,710.14$    
3 Seal Coat, Cemeteries & Parks S.Y. 24391.00 2.20$          53,660.20$    2.28$             55,611.48$    
4 Pavement Markings, Painted STA. 31.20 60.00$        1,872.00$      61.06$           1,905.07$      
5 Pavement Markings, Handicapped Symbols EA 4.00 65.00$        260.00$         23.75$           95.00$           
6 Mobilization L.S. 1.00 5,000.00$   5,000.00$      20,000.00$    20,000.00$    
7 Traffic Control L.S. 1.00 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$    7,500.00$      7,500.00$      

TOTAL $143,756.90 TOTAL $161,988.49

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Blacktop Service Company

120

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 9th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3248 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with OEL 
Construction Services, Inc. for the construction of the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with OEL Construction Services, Inc. for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. This 
project involves the construction of new Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalk 
according to the plans and specifications.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

121

Item 20.



122

Item 20.



123

Item 20.



124

Item 20.



125

Item 20.



126

Item 20.



127

Item 20.



128

Item 20.



129

Item 20.



OEL Construction Services, Inc.

130

Item 20.



131

Item 20.



132

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 6th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. ST-000-3252 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Benton’s 
Sand and Gravel for the construction of the 2021 Permeable Alley Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Benton’s Sand and Gravel for the construction of the 2021 Permeable Alley 
Project. This project involves the construction of one (1) permeable alley and one 
regular concrete alley. The purpose of these permeable alleys is to infiltrate storm water 
runoff with the goal of improving the water quality in Dry Run Creek. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

133

Item 21.



134

Item 21.



135

Item 21.



136

Item 21.



137

Item 21.



138

Item 21.



139

Item 21.



140

Item 21.



141

Item 21.



142

Item 21.



143

Item 21.



144

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 9th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3266 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Cobalt 
Contracting for the construction of the 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Cobalt Contracting, LC for the 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project. This 
project involves the construction of new Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalks in 
multiple areas throughout Cedar Falls according to the plans and specifications.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

145

Item 22.



146

Item 22.



147

Item 22.



148

Item 22.



149

Item 22.



150

Item 22.



151

Item 22.



152

Item 22.



153

Item 22.



1

154

Item 22.



155

Item 22.



156

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 6th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3237 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Cobalt 
Contracting for the construction of the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Cobalt Contracting, LC for the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project. This project 
involves the construction of Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalk according to the 
plans and specifications.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

157

Item 23.



158

Item 23.



159

Item 23.



160

Item 23.



161

Item 23.



162

Item 23.



163

Item 23.



164

Item 23.



165

Item 23.



166

Item 23.



167

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: August 9th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Cyber Lane Extension 
  Project No. RC-268-3245 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Owen 
Contracting, Inc for the construction of the Cyber Lane Extension Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Owen Contracting, Inc. for the construction of the Cyber Lane Extension Project. 
This project consists of the extension of Cyber Lane from the existing dead end, north to 
Technology Parkway. Project includes approximately 1700 square yards of 7” thick PCC 
pavement, 500 linear feet of storm sewer, and 400 square yards of 4” thick PCC 
sidewalk. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

168

Item 24.



169

Item 24.



170

Item 24.



171

Item 24.



172

Item 24.



173

Item 24.



174

Item 24.



175

Item 24.



176

Item 24.



177

Item 24.



178

Item 24.



179

Item 24.



180

Item 24.



181

Item 24.



182

Item 24.



183

Item 24.



184

Item 24.



185

Item 24.



186

Item 24.



187

Item 24.



188

Item 24.



189

Item 24.



190

Item 24.



191

Item 24.



192

Item 24.



193

Item 24.



194

Item 24.



195

Item 24.



196

Item 24.



197

Item 24.



198

Item 24.



199

Item 24.



200

Item 24.



201

Item 24.



202

Item 24.



203

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Kim Manning 

 DATE: July 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Amperage Marketing for FY22 Digital Advertising 
  
Please sign the attached contract to work with Amperage Marketing to promote  
Cedar Falls via digital advertising. 
 
We intend to spend $25,000 throughout FY22 to promote the city via Facebook, 
Instagram, Remarketing and Native Display Advertising. We recently received eight 
proposals for this project and Amperage was selected due to the quality of their work. 
 
After careful assessment of the City’s risk of exposure from the consultant for injuries or 
accidents, the City’s Risk Management Committee determined that insurance levels for 
this work can be modified to reduce the Umbrella limit from $3M to $1M and the 
Additional Insured and Non-Waiver of Governmental Immunities Endorsement 
requirement can be waived. This is because no traveling, site visits or community 
photography will be needed.   
 
 
Best regards.  
 
 
 

204

Item 25.



205

Item 25.



206

Item 25.



207

Item 25.



208

Item 25.



209

Item 25.



210

Item 25.



211

Item 25.



212

Item 25.



E 0 u oi 
C
 

~ 
~
 

t" 0 E 
.... 

w
 

<..'.) ·- 
<o:: 

,1//J. 
°" w ·- 
a... 

.:: 
~ <o:: 

~
 

:::: 

(J) 
0
) 
0
 

0
 

0
 V
I 

(J) 
""O 
:::> 
u 
.S 

(J) 

0 V
I 
0
 

0 ..c Q
_ 

V
I 

Q) 
""O 
0 (I) 
0
) 

C
 

0
 

..c u ""O 
(J) 
Q) 
:'Q V

I 
C
 

0
 

u (I) 
.D
 

v
,I 

1- 
w
 

V
) 

V
) 

<( 

C
 

.2> 
0
 

a. 
E 0 u 

. 
,_ 

C
 

::, 
0
) 

0
 

·-
 

>- g_ 
a. E 
a, 

0
 

~
 
u 

0
 

... 
- 

::, 
U
I 

0
 

"O 
>- 

0
 

C
 

- 
::, 

~
 ... 

. 2> "O 
,_ 

C
 

a, 
0
 

= 
a, 

a. 0 
o

 

- 
::, 

a, 
a. 

> 
0
 

a, 
a. 

"O 
0
 

- - 
"i 

"O 
w
 

a, 
c., 

"O 
< 

a, 
°' 

a, 
w
 

C
 

0.. 
U
I 

~ "i 
< :: 
en 

O
 

u 
0
 

a, 
·
 

a. "O 
U
I 

Cl) 
-o E 
C
 

Cl) 
0
~
 

U
I 
-
 

a, 
a, 

0
) 

... 
0
 
0
 

E 
o, 

•-
 

C
 

0
 "i 

-
 
0
 

0>=
 

.E 
o 

O
)~
 

0
 

. 
U
I .! 

U
I 
:= 

a, 
0
 

E

 

E 
a, 

o E 
... 

0
 

~
 
u 

c 0 
. 

a_ TI 
0
 
0
 

'5 
E 

~ 
~ 0) 

""O 
0
 

(J) 
-+
 

> 
V
I 

0
 

C
 

I,_
 
-
-
-
 

Q
_ 

..lo<: 
Q
_ 
0
 

0
 _g 
-
 

(I) 
g 

u 
~
 
0
 

(J) 
L
L
 

£ 
0 

.c- 
<I) 

E
 
3 

0
 

V
I 

V
I 
0
 

Q
 

V
I 

-+
- 

""O 
(I) 

0
 

== 
>- 

~
 
0
 

""O 
Q
_ 

0
 

-~
 

_
o
 

.2 
(J) 

:Q) -~ 
""0 

C
 

0
 
0
 

Q
_ 
~
 

0
 

(J) 
(J) 

~
 

> 
(J) 

(J) 
-
 

""O g> 
·-
 
0
 

3 0
 

w
 

- 
0
 TI 

<
( 

0
 

~
 
..c 

~
 
~ 

~
 
0
 

<( 
~
 

..lo<: 
u· 

""O 
0
 

(J) 
-+
- 

""O 
(/) 

(J) 
V
I 

(J) 
""O 

C
 
0
 

V
I 

(J) 
0
 

..c 
C
 

-+
- 

, Q
 

C
 

-+
- 

(J) 
0
 

V
I 

C
 

:::> 
'5 

I,_
 

0 
..Q 

0
 

> 
u 

..c Q_ 
0
 

I,_
 

0
) 
0
 

-+
- 
0
 

..c Q
_ 

-+
- 
u (J) 
·o 

V
I 

Q_ 
(J) 

""O 
U
 

C
 

'> 
0
 

U
 

a3 
V
, 

:.;:: 
V
I 

0
) 

C
 

O> .S 
<I> 

C
 

.S
Q
)£
 

0
 

""O 
(I) 

:::> 
t 2 

E 
o 

(I) 
J:: 

0
 

t g 
C
 

-+
- 

~
 

Q) 
I,_

 
Q
_ 

-+
- 

0
 

C
 

-- c _Q
) 

a, 
:t: 
::, 
C
l) 

"O 
< 

0 (1) 
Q
. 

0
 
g 

u 
.2> 

V
,
 
0
 

""O 
C
 

V
I 

0
 

0
 

a3 
0
) u 

""O 
:§ 

(J) 
u 

·c
 

U
 

..c 
3 

C
 

Q
_ 

>- 
(I) 

0
 

Q
_ 

Q) 
I,_

 
0
 
4
-
 

0
) 

U
 

C
 

V
I 

V
I 

Q
 

(J) 
(J) 

u 
""O 

""O 
:::> 

:::> 
u 

u 
C
 
C
 

0
 

..c u ""O 
(J) 
Q) 
""O 
'vi 
C
 

0
 

u (I) 
.D
 

-~ V
I 
C
 

0
 

'vi 
'> (I) I,_ Q) 
..c 
-+
- 

1
,_
 

:::> 
I,_

 
4
-
 

:::) 

I 
0
 

© 
..c 

~ 
Q) 

0
 

Q
_ 

I,_
 
0
 

(I) 
(") 

..c 
""O 

Q
_ 
~
 

-+-- 
U
'l 

tA
- 

-~ 
(I) 

C
 
4
-
 

""O 
0
 
0
 

w
 

(I) 
0
 

U
'l 

(I) 
(I) 

·s; 
-+-- 

<
( 

C
 

(J) 
0
 

~
 
4
-
 

I,_
 

I,_
 

w
 

-+
- c 

a.. 
..c 

C
 
0
 

~
 
u
· 

(J) 
0
 
u 

E 
<
( 

(J) 
0
 

>-o
 
4
-
 

-+-- 
0
 

U
'l 

Q
_ 

L!) 
:::) 

Q
_ tA

- 
V
I 
u 

-+-- 
:::> 

-+-- 
(J) 

(J) 
V
I 
0
 

V
I ..c 

(J) 
0
 

-+-- 
-~ 

.D
 

3 
-+
- 

-+-- 
0
 

-+-- 
-+-- 

0
 

C
 

C
 ·a 

0
 

""O 
-~ 

(J) 
-+-- 

(J) 

u u 
> 

Q
_=
 

0
 

:::, 
.D
 

:::: 
:::: 

:::: 
:::: 

:::: 

213

Item 25.



- MOVE THE NEEDLE )) AMPERAGEmarketing.com 

Cedar Falls Tourism \ Annual Campaign \ July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022 • J\Mrl!Rl\01 
""4kAll!Nu9 fUl40«At:.1Hc.o 

Display-to 
include Google Responsive Display Image (& Video possibly 

High Search 
Display repurposed) Ads. Five sets for Display: girl's I 

I 
1150-mile radius of Cedar Falls. I Targeting audiences specifically around tourism (in-

1 Season I Google Ads I Network. weekend. UNI events. Gallagher events. Trails. 35-54 Females but excluding Cedar Falls and market audiences) - travelers. family vacationers. 5 months: I $3.000.00 
YouTube and local events. Each ad set pointing to the a 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls travel buffs. April-Auqust 

Native corresponding wehpoge. 
Advertising 

Targeting audiences specifically around tourism (in- 
Dynamic Image & Video (possibly market audiences) - travelers. family vacationers. 

High Search I Focebook / I Focebook / 
repurposed) and Ads Carousel. Five sets for 150-mile radius of Cedar Falls. travel buffs. hiking. college sports: Utilizing T orget 

1 
I Display: girl's weekend. UNI events. Gallagher 35-54 Females but excluding Cedar Falls and Expansion to help improve campaign performance 5 months: I $4.800.00 Season lnstogrom lnstogram a 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls by allowing the Facebook system to reach a Aprll-Auqust events. Trails. local events. Each ad set 

pointing to the corresponding webpoge. brooder set of people than defined in the detailed 
targeting section. 

Create remorketing audiences based on visitors to 
your website. either driven by digital ads or organic 

High Search I Google Ads I I Responsive Display Remorketing Ads - one 

I I 
150-mile radius of Cedar Falls. I visits. 

Remorketing 35-54 Females but excluding Cedar Falls and Create remorketing audiences based on email or 5 months: I $3,000.00 Season set for remorketing IO 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls street addresses gathered from requesting a visitor's I Apnl-August 
guide. newsletter or contact us. Privacy policies 

and other data gathering guidelines ore followed 

Display- to 
include Google Responsive Display Image I& Video possibly 

Low Search I Google Ads 
Display repurposed) Ads. Five sets for Display: girl's I 

I 
1150-mile radius of Cedar Falls, I Targeting audiences specifically around tourism (in-1 7 months: 

Season 
Network. weekend. UNI events. Gallagher events. Trails. 35-54 Females but excluding Cedar Falls and market audiences) - travelers. family vacationers. September- $3.000.00 

YouTube and local events. Each ad set pointing to the a 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls travel buffs. Morch 
Native corresponding webpoge. 

Advertising 

Dynamic Image & Video (possibly 

Low Search I Focebook / I Focebook / repurposed) and Ads Carousel. Five sets for I 
I 

1150-mile radius of Cedar Falls. I Targeting audiences specifically around tourism (in-1 7 months: I Display: girl's weekend. UNI events. Gallagher 35-54 Females but excluding Cedar Falls and market audiences) - travelers. family vacationers. September- $3.000.00 
Season lnstogram lnstogrom a 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls travel buffs. Morch events. Trails. local events. Each ad set 

pointing to the corresponding webpoge. 

Create remorketing audiences based on visitors to 
your website. either driven by digital ads or organic 

I Google Ads I I Responsive Display Remorketing Ads - one I 35-54 I 
I .SO-mile radius of Cedar Falls. I visits. I 7 months: 

Low Search 
Remorketing Females lbut excluding Cedar Falls and Create remorketing audiences based _on email°'. September- $2.400.00 

Season set for remorketing 
0 30-mile radius of Cedar Falls street addresses gathered from requesting a visitor s Morch 

guide. newsletter or contact us. Privacy policies 
and other data gathering guidelines ore followed 

Total lnffltment 

214

Item 25.



- MOVE THE NEEDLE >> AMPERAGEmarketing.com 

MEDIA PROPOSAL 
CEDAR FALLS TOURISM 2.26.2021 
AMPERAGE is excited to work with Cedar Falls Tourism. Thank you for the opportunity to move the needle with you. 
By signing below, you agree to the terms of this agreement including all listed in the scope of work sections titled 
"Scope of Work." 

PROJECT COMPONENTS 
» Digital Ad Placement 
» Digital Media Asset Production 
TOTAL INVESTMENT 

$19,200.00 
$ 5,800.00 
$25,000.00 

AMPERAGE's media buying and planning compensation is commission-based. This commission covers all media-related 
functions; there are no other fees or hourly rates involved. Media is billed monthly, in advance. An initial installment of 
one-half of the total investment will initiate production project(s). The investment does not include out-of-pocket 
expenses such as sales tax, printing, custom photography, media dubs, etc. The investment does include electronic 
output, web-friendly video files and stock images where indicated. 

Target deadlines and timelines will be determined upon receipt of the signed quote. The quote is subject to revision and 
may include a 10% contingency fee if the scope of work is changed at the client's request. Quote is valid for 60 days. 
AMPERAGE reserves the right to bill for work in progress. Upon completion of the job, the remainder of the cost then 
outstanding will be billed. 

Client approval to proceed with project: 

Signature Date 

I give AMPERAGE permission to use our final, approved and published work in its marketing materials. (yes or no) 

I 

215

Item 25.



E 0 u OJ 
.£:: 
§ 0 E w 
l') 
4'. 
a,:: 
w
 

C
L 
~ ~ 

I 
V
) 

D
.. 
w
 

[I- 
V
) 

0
 

'5 
-0 

Q
) 

C
 

E 
0
 
0
 

~ 0) 
0
 

·-
 

Q
_ ~

 
0
 

::::, 
'- 

0
 

Q
. 

>- 
. 

V
1 
'-
 "D 

:f .2 
Q
) 

0
) 

U
J 

Q
) 

C
 
('.) 

C
 

·-
 
<( 

0
) 

~
 

0::: 
C
 

Q
) 

U
J ">- 

> 
0.... 

::::, 
I 
~
 2 

_.Q 
0 

<( 
-0 

4
-
 
0
) 

C
 

::::, 
C
 
0
 

0
 
'- 

0
) 

>- 
Q
) 

C
 

~
 

:"Q 
C
 

C
 
"' 

C
 

0
 

C
 
0
 

f=. 8 
Q
. 

0
 

V
1 
o 

c 
g- 

0
 
~
 

Q_ ..... 
Q
) 

V
1 2 

::::, 
..c 

O
 
0
 

>- 
"' ..... 

::::, 
Q
) 
'- 

0
 
..c 

0
 

_.o 
..... 

Q
. 

0
 
0
 

Q
. 

C
 

::::, 
V
1 

V
1 

C
 
0
 

.Q
 
-0 2 

-+- 

(]) 
E 

::::, 
0
 

CY 2 

w
 

u z w c ::> 
<( 
0:: 
::> 

IX
 

0
 
w
 

>- 
~
 

>- 
w
 

u.. 
(.!) 

0:: 
0
 

........ 
u 

w
 

w
 
_, 

i:jj 
Cl 
w
 

0
 
w
 

.... 
z 

c.. 
w
 

::> 
:::t: 
.... 

0:: 
w
 

w
 > 

3: 
0
 

2 ~ 
V
, 

V
, 

.... 
i 

w
 
w
 

_, 
_, 

Q) 
0
) 
0
 

C
 

0
 

2 

Iii J
 

□ Iii Iii z Iii I ~ Iii > 

I 

0 l 

• 

-+- 
c ::::, 
0
 
u u <( 
-+
 

"' 
>- 

0
 

Q
) u:: 
© 

C
 

u 
15 

C
 

0
 

V) 
0::: 

216

Item 25.



Exhibit C 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number _ 

08-24-2020 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term "contractor" as used in this 
document shall be defined as any person or entity that will be performing work for 
the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 

1. All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa. All insurance policies shall be with 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide. 

2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement. A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Attachment 1 . 

3. Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Attachment 1. Such Certificate 
shall include copies of the following endorsements: 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement - See 

Attachment 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement- See Attachment 1 

Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly authorized to transact business at the 
location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment under this 
contract. 

Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 

217

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. --- 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this contract. 

6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this contract, and at City's option, shall allow City to 
terminate this contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at contractor's 
expense. 

7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits, or greater if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Attachment 1 : 

► This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form, 
except for errors and omissions coverage, if required, which shall be 
written on a claims made form. All deviations or exclusions from the 
standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 shall be clearly 
identified and shall be subject to review and approval of the City. 

► Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 
following substantial completion of the services called for in this contract to 
cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard and 
liability assumed under an insured contract. 

► Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to the form 
in Attachment 1. 

► Additional Insured Requirement - See Attachment 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, and its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities 
and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be named as 
an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes of 
contractors. 

Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 

* ISO CG 20 10 07 04 "Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors - Scheduled Person or Organization" 

** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 "Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors - Completed Operations" 

218

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _ 

9. Errors and Omissions: If the Contractor's scope of services includes 
design work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain 
insurance coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions 
(except for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services 
performed by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous errors and 
omissions coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of this 
contract, and continuing for a period of no less than two (2) years from the date 
of completion of all work completed or services performed under this contract, 
and acceptance of same by the City. The limit of liability under such coverage 
shall not be less than $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

10. Separation of lnsured's Provision: If Contractor's liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured's provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 

11. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set forth in this contract, City does 
not represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor's liability under this contract. The City retains the right at any time to 
require liability insurance greater or lesser than that otherwise specified in this 
Exhibit and Attachment 1. If greater or lesser liability insurance limits are 
required, the same shall be stated on the attached General Terms and 
Conditions document. 

12. Performance and Payment Bonds: The City shall have the right to require 
the Contractor to furnish performance and payment bonds for the full amount of 
the Contract price. The Contractor shall furnish, by a surety and in a form 
satisfactory to the City, such bonds to the City, prior to the start of Contractor's 
work, covering the performance of the Contractor and the payment of all 
obligations arising hereunder. The nature and extent of any such required 
bond(s) shall be included in the request for bids or proposals. The Contractor, 
upon receipt of the bonds and invoice from the surety, shall pay for the cost of 
said bonds. Additional bond premium costs due to modifications to this contract, 
shall be included in the modification amount submitted by Contractor, and paid 
by Contractor. 

13. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor's 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 

219

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. --- 

of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor's policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 

Completion Checklist 

□ Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
□ Designated Construction Project(s) General Aggregate Limit CG 25 03 03 97 

(2 pages) 
o Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
o Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
□ Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

220

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _ 

ATTACHMENT 1 - INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
Commercial General Liability 

General Aggregate 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit 
Each Occurrence Limit 
Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) 
Medical Payments 

$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$ 50,000 
$ 5,000 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit) $1,000,000 
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 

Standard Workers Compensation 
Statutory for Coverage A 
Employers Liability: 

Each Accident 
Each Employee - Disease 
Policy Limit - Disease 

$ 500,000 
$ 500,000 
$ 500,000 

Umbrella: $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies ). 

Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 

221

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _ 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 

2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 

3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 

4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

222

Item 25.



AMPERAGE Marketing FY22 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _ 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non 
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached. Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 

223

Item 25.



ACORDe CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DA Tl: {MM/00/YYYY I 

'-.----' 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CER11FICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(SJ, AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho policy(les) must be endorsed. Jr SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho 
hirms and conditions of the pollcy, certain pollclos may require an endorsement. A statement on thls certificate does not confer rlghta to the 
certificate holder In Ihm of such ondorsomont(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT 
t16Mr-• 

Your Insurance Agency rn~.t c-"· I ffi~ .,~,; 
123 Main Streel E•IIIAIL 4nn<>F.~"-· 
Anytown, IA 00000 PRODUCER 

~t.0/,ll;RJIU.: __ 

- INSURERlSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAlC/1 
INSURED INC:URER 11 : Carrier should reflect rating of A- Vil I or better 

Business Name --- 
~Ull~RR: 

123 Mnin Street INS!.IRERC: 
Anytown, IA 0000 INSURBlD: 

~Uiu:_RE: 

IIIISIJR€R F: 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOllMTHSTANDING ANY REQUIRcMENT, TERM OR CONDITION or ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITII RESPECT TO Wl~ICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUAJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVF. AFEN REDUCED BY PAID Cl AIMS. 

INSR TYPE 01' INSURANCE ,.,~,, 'wvn Poucv·rFF~flot:JcvexP LIMITS J.'TR POLICY NUMBER 

A GENER"L UABUTY 
Polley Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 EAQ-i OCOJRRENCF. s 1,000.000_ - X COMMERCIAi. GENERAL LIAIJ!U rv @ ~ -~~t~l//a~~-, $ rnn.!l!lll.. - D CLAII\IS-MADE Lil OCCUR MEO EXP 11\nv one """""'' s ~ nnn - 

- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1 con 000 
GENERALAGORfGATE $ ? nnn nnn - 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APR.JES PER: PROCUCTS - COMPOP AGG $ ? D.00.000.. n POLICY lx7 ~ nLOC $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Polley Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 COM~NED SNO\.e LIMIT $ 1,000,000 "x (Ea accldori) 
ANY AUTO 0 [E - BCXll.Y INJURY (Pee pe/$00) $ 
ALL O't,NEO AUTOS BOOII. Y INJURY (Per acddenl) $ ,__ 

- SCHE.OUlEDAllTOS PROFERTY DAMAGE 
HIRED AUTOS (Par accident) $ 

f-- 

NON-0\.\tjEO .AUTOS $ - 
$ 

A X UMtlRElLA LIAR 
~ OCCUR Polley Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 EACH OCCIJARENCE $ 3 000 000 - EXCESSUAB CLAIMS.MADE 

~ C AOGREOATE $ 3,000,000 
DEDUCTIBLE $ - 
RETEHTJOH ' $ 

A WORKERS COMPE NSATION 
Polley Number 01/0112015 01/01/2016 XIT~~f':I.~I lviik'· 

ANO EMPLOYERS' LJI\BLJTY y / N 
ANY PROPR!EfOR/l'ARTNER/EXEQJTI\IE □ 

~ 
E.L. EACHACOOENT $ ,mn nM 

OFFICER/McM8ER EXCLUDED7 NIA 

l""""'to,y In NII) EL OlSEASt • EA EMP\.OYEE S r.nn nnn 
r yos, <losel1 b8 unoor ~ E.L DISEASE • POUCY LIMIT ' r.nn·nnn "'"-~· 
Errors & Omissions ~ C Policy Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 Each Occurence $1,000,000 

DESCRIPllON OF OPERATIONS/ LOCA 110.'IS IVEHICLl!S (Attach ACORD 1el, Additional Remarks SchMlule, Ir "'er• spa"" I& roqulrod) 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all Its tilected and appointed officials, all Its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or aulhoritlos and their 
board members, employees and volunleers are an Additional lnsured(s) on the general llabinly policy on a primary and non-conlnoutory basis (CG2010 & 
CG2037). Governmental lmmunllles Endorsement Including 30 Days Nolice of Oancslla on lnctuded. Waiver of Subrogation under the Work Comp & Gen Llab. 

CERTIFICATE NUIIIBER: REVISION NUMBER: 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

Cily of Cedar Falls SHOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES DE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

220 Clay Street POI.ICY PROVISIONS. 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 AUTIIORIZED REPRl!SfNTATIVE 

I 

CANCELLATION 

ACORD 26 (2009/09) 
© 1988- 2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 224

Item 25.



CG 25 03 03 97 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION PROJECT(S) 
GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE I Designated Construction Projects: 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations 
as applicable to this endorsement.) 
A. For all sums which the insured becomes legally 

obligated to pay as damages caused by "occur 
rences" under COVERAGE A (SECTION I}, and 
for all medical expenses caused by accidents 
under COVERAGE C (SECTION I), which can be 
attributed only to ongoing operations at a single 
designated construction project shown in the 
Schedule above: 
1. A separate Designated Construction Project 

General Aggregate Limit applies to each des 
ignated construction project, and that limit is 
equal to the amount of the General Aggregate 
Limit shown in the Declarations. 

2. The Designated Construction Project General 
Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the 
sum of all damages under COVERAGE A, 
except damages because of "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" included in the "products 
completed operations hazard", and for medi 
cal expenses under COVERAGE C regard 
less of the number of: 
a. Insureds; 
b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or 
c. Persons or organizations making claims or 

bringing "suits". 
3. Any payments made under COVERAGE A 

for damages or under COVERAGE C for 
medical expenses shall reduce the Desig 
nated Construction Project General Aggre 
gate Limit for that designated construction 
project. Such payments shall not reduce the 
General Aggregate Limit shown in the Decla 
rations nor shall they reduce any other 

Designated Construction Project General 
Aggregate Limit for any other designated 
construction project shown in the Schedule 
above. 

4. The limits shown in the Declarations for Each 
Occurrence, Fire Damage and Medical Ex 
pense continue to apply. However, instead of 
being subject to the General Aggregate Limit 
shown in the Declarations, such limits will be 
subject to the applicable Designated Con 
struction Project General Aggregate Limit. 

B. For all sums which the insured becomes legally 
obligated to pay as damages caused by "occur 
rences" under COVERAGE A (SECTION I), and 
for all medical expenses caused by accidents 
under COVERAGE C (SECTION I), which cannot 
be attributed only to ongoing operations at a sin 
gle designated construction project shown in the 
Schedule above: 
1. Any payments made under COVERAGE A for 

damages or under COVERAGE C for medical 
expenses shall reduce the amount available 
under the General Aggregate Limit or the 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate 
Limit, whichever is applicable; and 

2. Such payments shall not reduce any Desig 
nated Construction Project General Aggre 
gate Limit. 

CG 25 03 03 97 Page 1 of2 
225

Item 25.



CG 25 03 03 97 

C. When coverage for liability ansmg out of the 
"products-completed operations hazard" is pro 
vided, any payments for damages because of 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" included in 
the "products-completed operations hazard" will 
reduce the Products-Completed Operations Ag 
gregate Limit, and not reduce the General Ag 
gregate Limit nor the Designated Construction 
Project General Aggregate Limit. 

D. If the applicable designated construction project 
has been abandoned, delayed, or abandoned 
and then restarted, or if the authorized contract 
ing parties deviate from plans, blueprints, de 
signs, specifications or timetables, the project will 
still be deemed to be the same construction pro 
ject. 

E. The provisions of Limits Of Insurance (SECTION 
Ill) not otherwise modified by this endorsement 
shall continue to apply as stipulated. 

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1996 

Page 2 of 2 CG 25 03 03 97 
226

Item 25.



POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 2010 07 04 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS·-scHEDULED PERSON OR 

ORGANIZATION 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Orqantzatlonts): 

Location(s) Of Covered Operations 

Information reauired to comolete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury'', "property 
damage" or "personal and advertising injury" 
caused, in whole or in part, by: 
1. Your acts or omissions; or 
2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your 

behalf; 

CG 2010 07 04 

in the performance of your ongoing operations for 
the additional insured(s) at the location(s) desig 
nated above. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following additional exclu 
sions apply: 
This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" occurring after: 

Page 1 of 2 
227

Item 25.



1. All work, including materials, parts or equip 
ment furnished in connection with such work, 
on the project (other than service, maintenance 
or repairs) to be performed by or on behalf of 
the additional insured(s) at the loca tion of the 
covered operations has been completed; or 

2. That portion of "your work" out of which the 
injury or damage arises has been put to its in 
tended use by any person or organization 
other than another contractor or subcontractor 
engaged in performing operations for a princi 
pal as a part of the same project. 

All terms and conditions of this policy apply unless modified by this endorsement. 

Page 2 of 2 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 CG 20 10 07 04 228

Item 25.



POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 37 07 04 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person{s) 
Or Oruanlzattonts): 

Location And Description Of Completed Operations 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with 
respect to liability for "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" caused, in whole or in part, by "your work" 
at 

the location designated and described in the schedule 
of this endorsement performed for that additional in 
sured and included in the "products-completed opera 
tions hazard". 

All terms and conditions of this policy apply unless modified by this endorsement. 

CG 20 37 07 04 © ISO Properties, Inc .. 2004 Page 1 of 1 

229

Item 25.



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

8/4/2021

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Lynette Sugden
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

lsugden@pdcm.com

Chubb Group of Ins Co
AMPELLC-01

Amperage LLC
6711 Chancellor Dr
Cedar Falls IA 50613

1880170333

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

Y 36015823 4/1/2021 4/1/2022

2,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

Y 73583656 4/1/2021 4/1/2022

A X X 5,000,00079818662

5,000,000

4/1/2021 4/1/2022

A Y 71750756 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 X X
500,000

500,000

500,000
A Errors & Omissions 82402658 4/1/2021 4/1/2022 Errors & Omissions 1,000,000

When required in a written contract, Waiver of subrogation is provided under the General Liability and Auto Policy, in favor of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including
all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees and
volunteers. Carrier will endeavor to provide 30 day notice of cancellation. Waiver of subrogation is provided in favor of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all
its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees and
volunteers, under the workers compensation policy.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

230

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 6, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant - Grant Administration and   
  Technical Services 
  Federal Fiscal Year 2021 (City FY2022) 
  Project Number BL-000-CD 
 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  In Federal Fiscal Year 2021, funding for the entitlement CDBG program is 
$274,792.  The City has contracted with INRCOG to help with administration and 
technical services related to projects eligible for CDBG and HOME funds since February 
2018.  INRCOG’s support helps the City maintain these programs, without adding staff. 
 
The City recently adopted the Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Action Plan to include 
the following activities: 
 

Activity FFY21 AAP 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$36,785 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$25,000 

Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational 
Support (Service Agencies – capped at 15% of annual allocation) 

$40,620 

Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. Street, Sewer, 

Water) 
$250,000 

Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e Sidewalks, Trail, 

Curb Cuts) 
$58,602 

CDBG Planning and Administration 
(capped at 20% of annual allocation) 

$54,160 

FFY21 Total (including carryover/reallocation) $465,167 

 
INRCOG’s proposed services include CDBG general administration (preparing plans, 
reports, and monitoring service agencies), technical support for housing rehabilitation 

231

Item 26.



projects, as well as technical support for the Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
(sewer lining) and the Sidewalk Replacement Project covering federal requirements for 
construction management and Davis-Bacon wages verification.  The total cost for 
services outlined in the attached contract is $64,500. 
 
Staff recommends continuing services with INRCOG in FFY21 (City FY22).  Attached is 
the proposed agreement with all required attachments. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Xc: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

232

Item 26.



233

Item 26.



234

Item 26.



235

Item 26.



236

Item 26.



237

Item 26.



238

Item 26.



239

Item 26.



240

Item 26.



241

Item 26.



242

Item 26.



243

Item 26.



244

Item 26.



245

Item 26.



246

Item 26.



247

Item 26.



248

Item 26.



249

Item 26.



250

Item 26.



251

Item 26.



252

Item 26.



253

Item 26.



254

Item 26.



255

Item 26.



256

Item 26.



257

Item 26.



258

Item 26.



259

Item 26.



260

Item 26.



261

Item 26.



262

Item 26.



263

Item 26.



264

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 6, 2021 

 SUBJECT: HOME Investment Partnership Program - Technical Services 
  Project Number BL-000-3289 
 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  Through a consortium agreement with the City of Waterloo, Cedar Falls receives 
HOME Investment Partnership Program funds.  Our agreement in July 2019 provided 
that Cedar Falls would receive approximately $90,000 per year, depending on the HUD 
annual award.  While Waterloo handles the general administrative requirements for the 
HOME Program (submitting annual plans and reports), in the past Cedar Falls has 
contracted with INRCOG for technical services related to the projects HOME funding 
supports. 
 
INRCOG’s proposed services include technical support for housing rehabilitation 
projects as well as environmental review preparation and processing for projects under 
the CHDO agreement Cedar Falls executed with Habitat for Humanity in February 2021.  
That agreement provided up to $361,246 of Cedar Falls’ accumulated HOME funds for 
various activities such as new construction materials ($40,890), acquisition ($150,378), 
owner occupied rehabilitation projects ($69,980) and rehabilitation project materials 
($100,000).  A contract on Habitat’s first project executing that February agreement was 
approved by Council on August 2, 2021. 
 
The total cost for INRCOG’s services as outlined in the attached contract is $20,000. 
 
Staff recommends entering into an agreement with INRCOG for this needed support.  
Attached is the proposed agreement with all required attachments. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 

265

Item 27.



 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Xc: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

266

Item 27.



267

Item 27.



268

Item 27.



269

Item 27.



270

Item 27.



271

Item 27.



272

Item 27.



273

Item 27.



274

Item 27.



275

Item 27.



276

Item 27.



277

Item 27.



278

Item 27.



279

Item 27.



280

Item 27.



281

Item 27.



282

Item 27.



283

Item 27.



284

Item 27.



285

Item 27.



286

Item 27.



287

Item 27.



288

Item 27.



289

Item 27.



290

Item 27.



291

Item 27.



292

Item 27.



293

Item 27.



294

Item 27.



295

Item 27.



296

Item 27.



297

Item 27.



298

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: August 5, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Property improvements in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District site plan for 
the addition of new parking area at 2415 Franklin Street (#DR21-007) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Owner: Todd Wuestenberg and Darin Wohlgemuth 

LOCATION: 2415 Franklin Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
This request involves a proposal for site redevelopment at 2415 Franklin Street. The applicant is 
proposing to add a new parking area behind the house and remove the gravel area in the front/ 
side yard and closing the curb from Franklin Street. The property is located in the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District and a review by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council is required for making substantial improvements on the property in the district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
District was established for the 
preservation of neighborhood character 
and the stabilization of its neighborhoods 
after a long history of changes and 
updates to properties that typically 
increased occupancies and detracted from 
the original intent of those properties and 
neighborhoods. This trend and the 
establishment of the Overlay called for 
more scrutiny when reviewing changes 
that may affect the character of the 
neighborhood. See location map on the 
side for reference. 
 
 

299

Item 28.



The subject property is located within the R-2, Residence District of the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (Section 26-181). The Overlay defines the adding or 
increase in area of any existing parking area or parking lot, which existing or new parking area 
or parking lot contains or is designed to potentially accommodate a total of three or more 
parking stalls as a substantial improvement. A substantial improvement requires review and 
approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council. The criterion listed in 
the Overlay requires that the following be considered in this review: neighborhood character, 
minimum on-site parking requirements, parking lot standards, open space/landscaping 
requirements and other provisions as applicable in the code. 
 
The property in question has been a registered rental from May 2006 until 2018. The petitioner 
purchased this property in May 2021 with the intent to make improvements to the property and 
start operating as a rental property. The major reason to go this route is that; the applicant’s 
daughters will be staying here, during their degree at UNI and would have two other roommates.  
Currently, the rental application for the subject property has been reviewed by Group Rental 
Committee with stipulations of making updates to property as needed per building code and also 
to provide required off-street parking for the requested occupancy of 4 individuals aged 18 years 
or older per unit. The proposed site plan indicates that the applicant will be adding a parking 
area behind the house as per staff’s recommendation and would remove all the gravel areas in 
the required front and side yard and close off the curb to close the access from Franklin Street. 
See below for reference. 
 

 
City staff notes that the focus for this case is to review the proposed parking area and 
preservation of neighborhood character. The focus is not on the occupancy of the unit. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The existing building at 2415 Franklin Street is a two-story structure. No changes to the building 
envelope are being proposed. Currently, the property has a paved approach and a gravel area 
for parking on side of the house, which is used for parking. As per Section 11-179, gravel is not 
allowed and all parking areas or driveways associated with rental properties are required to be 
hard-surfaced. The applicant plans to remove all the gravel area, replace it with grass and 

300

Item 28.



remove the access point by placing a curb back in Right-of-Way. The applicant in response 
proposes to pave a parking area/lot behind the house, which will be accessed from the alley, as 
per suggestions from staff. This was one of the stipulations set forth by the Group Rental 
Committee while reviewing the “Change in Ownership” application from the applicant.  The 
following is an evaluation of the proposed property improvements according to standards 
outlined in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District and other applicable codes: 
 

1. Neighborhood Character: Preserving neighborhood character is a priority of the College 
Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. The addition or increase in the area of any parking 
area or parking lot containing three or more parking stalls is considered as a substantial 
improvement under College Hill Overlay Zoning District. In response, the applicant 
proposes: 

 Removal of all the existing gravel areas in the required front yard and side yard on 
the property and seed back with grass. (Will bring the property in compliance with 
zoning code) 

 Removal of the existing paved access point from Franklin St to the property and 
seed the area back with grass and adding curb back. (Will lead to maintaining 
walkability in the  neighborhood) 

 Addition of parking area/pad accessed from the alleyway for the tenants. (Having a 
parking area behind the house, promotes the character of the neighborhood) 

 Adding landscaping screening around the proposed parking area/pad to screen 
the parking area from the surrounding property. (Add a buffer from adjacent 
properties, as per the intent of the code) 

 Adding a four-foot wide sidewalk from the parking area to the house. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

See above sketch for reference. The applicant’s proposal reflects the staff’s 
recommendation and the applicant has been very cooperative to make improvements on 
the property that is best for preserving the character of the neighborhood. The applicant 
intends to comply with all potential code items that need to be addressed to make this 
property code compliant. The proposed site plan intends to preserve the character of 
the neighborhood. 

301

Item 28.



 
2. Minimum on-site parking requirements: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 

requires one parking stall per bedroom. The required dimension of one parking stall for 
residential uses is 8 feet by 18 feet. The applicant is proposing a parking pad measuring 
20 feet long and 36 feet wide to accommodate four stalls for four bedrooms in the house. 
On-site parking requirements are met as per the proposed site plan submittal. 
 

3. Parking lot standards: A parking lot is defined as an area designated for parking three or 
more vehicles. The parking lot needs to have at least five feet setback from the property 
and the pad must include a walking path/sidewalk for tenants to access the property from 
the parking pad. As per code, a three-foot setback is required from the west property line 
abutting the alleyway as well. However, we provide the option to the applicant to either 
pave it to the lot line, as there is no timeline, on when the particular alley will be paved. 
The proposed site plan layout meets the setback requirement for the paved area 
and sidewalk to access the property.  

 
4. Open space/ landscaping requirements: This criterion regulates parking areas and 

required green spaces. About maintaining rear yard coverage for parking, a single unit in 
the R-2 zoning district can have maximum rear yard coverage up to 30% for parking. As 
per the proposal, the applicant is using approximately 15% of the required rear yard. 
Also, the applicant will be adding screening shrubs around the proposed parking area to 
screen the parking area from neighboring properties. City staff feels that the proposal 
does meet the city codes and the prosed changes would enhance character for the 
neighborhood.  

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Notification of this case was sent to adjacent property owners on 07/21/2021. Applicant has 
applied for both Right-of-way permit and driveway permit to carry out the intended project for the 
property at 2415 Franklin Street. Permits will be approved and released, once we get approval 
from Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. Also, the rental application from the 
applicant is with planning staff, and will also be processed once we get approval of this 
presented case.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted design review 
application at their regular meeting on 28th July 2021 with a vote of 7 ayes and 0 nays. The 
Community Development Department also recommends approval of the submitted design 
review application to include parking pad and other site improvements at 2415 Franklin Street 
property.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/28/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background  
information. He explained that the applicant is proposing site improvements  
which include: removing the existing gravel areas on site and seeding with  
grass; removing the paved access point from Franklin Street to the property  
and adding curb; adding a parking area/pad accessed from the alleyway;  
adding landscaping screening around the proposed parking; and adding a  
four-foot wide sidewalk from the parking area to the house. Staff feels that  
the requirements will be met and will meet the character of the neighborhood.  
Staff recommends approval of the submitted design review application. Mr.  

302

Item 28.



Atodaria noted that correspondence was received from a neighbor noting  
that previously there has been an issue with tenants at other rental locations  
parking on the street instead of parking in the back.  
 
The applicant, Todd Wuestenberg, thanked Mr. Atodaria for his help with the  
process, stating that he has been a great representative. He noted that he  
will be available for any questions. Mr. Schrad asked how many bedrooms  
are in the rental unit and if complies with parking requirements. Mr. Atodaria  
stated that there are four bedrooms and that it is in compliance and the group  
rental committee has already approved the rental application with stipulations  
and the paving was one of the stipulations that needed P&Z and City Council  
review. Mr. Larson stated that he feels it will be a nice improvement. 
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Sears seconded the  
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Holst, Larson,  
Leeper, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 
 

 
Attachments: 
Zoning Location Map 
Land use property sketch 
Letter of Intent 

303

Item 28.



Dr
y

Run

Creek
(SW

)

Seerley Park

UNI Prairie Trai
l

â
â â

ââ

â

â

â â

â

â

W 23rd St

W 26th St

W 22nd St

W Seerley Blvd

Iow
a S

t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Cla
y S

t

University Ave

R-3

RP

C-2

R-2

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
July 28, 2021

College Hill Site Plan Review
for 2415 Franklin St

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

304

Item 28.



305

Item 28.



Ϯϰϭϱ�&ƌĂŶŬůŝŶ�WĂƌŬŝŶŐ
tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϭϮ͕�ϮϬϮϭ ϴ͗ϱϳ�WD

306

Item 28.



Todd Wuestenberg 
104 Cedar Lane Huxley, IA  50124 | 515-203-0006 | todd@haverkamp-properties.com 

7/11/2021 

Department of Community Development 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613  

Dear Department of Community Development: 

This letter of intent is for 2415 Franklin Street. 

An overview of the planned work is to create a paved parking area (20’ x 36’) off of the alley, with a 
minimum five feet separation from the side lot line and the necessary landscape screening.  In addition, 
we would remove the current gravel parking, seed with grass, plant one tree, and close out/add a new 
curb to existing Franklin Street driveway.   

We want to do this work to meet the requirements to receive approval for a rental permit. 

I am a co-owner of this property, and Darin Wohlgemuth is the other co-owner.  Darin’s address is 54026 
276th Street, Kelley, Iowa, 50134. 

Our scheduled date to pave the proposed area is September 1st or sooner pending the contractor’s 
availability and weather.  Upon the completion of the new parking Darin and I will remove the gravel area 
ourselves and restore the area with grass seed.   

Sincerely, 

Todd Wuestenberg 

307

Item 28.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: August 9, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Set date of public hearings for the Downtown Character District Code and 
Regulating Plan and for rezoning property to the new designation of CD-DT: 
Downtown Character District 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
A public review draft of a new zoning code and zoning map for a new zoning district, the 
Downtown Character District, were presented during a special virtual Cedar Falls Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting on February 17, 2021. This new zoning district is intended to 
facilitate new development in the downtown and surrounding residential neighborhoods that is 
consistent with Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan, which was adopted by the City Council in 
November 2019.  Since presentation of the proposed Downtown Character District regulations 
in February, the proposed code and regulating plan map have been available for public review 
and comment on the project webpage: www.ourcedarfalls.com and have been advertised widely 
on all social media, by press release, and with printed letters to all property owners within the 
study area. The code project has been featured on local television news broadcasts and on the 
City Cable Channel 15.  
 
During the four months of review by the Commission, the consultants and staff met virtually with 
the Planning and Zoning Commission at four special work sessions to discuss the various 
elements of the proposed code and regulating plan and answer questions from the Commission. 
Staff also provided three different opportunities for work session discussions with development 
professionals and with Community Main Street, and encouraged the public to view and submit 
questions or comments to the Planning Division. Staff have responded to emails and phone 
inquiries and documented requests for changes to the draft.  All property owners in the area 
were notified by mail of the public hearing date and provided with instructions on how to 
participate in the Planning and Zoning Commission hearings. Notice was also published in the 
Courier for both the proposed new zoning code for Downtown and for the rezoning of property to 
the new designation of Downtown Character District (CD-DT), noting that the Downtown 
Character District Regulating Plan (attached) will be the new zoning map for the area.   
 
Public input was invited during public hearings on April 14 and April 28, 2021. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission considered amendment requests from the public, staff, and Commission 
members at their April 14 meeting. No additional requests for changes were submitted for the 

308

Item 29.

http://www.ourcedarfalls.com/


 
 

April 28 hearing. The consultants and staff documented each requested amendment along with 
an explanation, and pros and cons of making the change, in a “decision matrix” for consideration 
by the Commission.  
 
Based on the Commission’s decisions on the proposed amendments, the consultant prepared 
red-lined changes for the Commission’s review at their May 12, 2021 meeting. At that meeting, 
the Commission confirmed their approval of the changes and voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the Downtown Character District regulations and the associated 
Regulating Plan, which will serve as the new zoning map for the Downtown Character 
District, along with the new administrative procedures and land use classification 
regulations.  
 
After a public hearing, the Commission also voted to recommend approval of a rezoning 
of all property within the boundaries of the Downtown Character District Regulating Plan 
to CD-DT, Downtown Character District.  
 
Project consultants from Ferrell Madden presented the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommended draft of the new code, the associated regulating plan, new administrative 
procedures, and land use classification regulations to the City Council at a Committee of the 
Whole Meeting on May 17, 2021. The City Council held two work sessions on June 7 and June 
21 to review and discuss the proposal. At your August 2nd Committee of the Whole meeting, at 
the request of Council, staff and the project consultants from Ferrell Madden, presented more 
information about the parking requirements, including the intent behind the requirements for 
shared parking.   
 
The updated zoning regulations are an important step in implementing the Imagine Downtown! 
Vision Plan, which was adopted by the Cedar Falls City Council in November 2019. The plan 
was the result of public workshops and a variety of public outreach events that took place in 
2019, where community members were invited to share their feedback and ideas for the future 
of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods. The adoption of new zoning regulations will 
encourage development that is consistent with the community’s vision. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff now recommends that Council set a public hearing date for September 7th to formally 
consider the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommended draft of the Downtown 
Character District regulations, the Downtown Character District Regulating Plan, and the 
associated administrative procedures and land use classification system.  
 
Staff also recommends that Council set a public hearing date for September 7th to formally 
consider rezoning all property within the defined boundaries of the Downtown Character District 
to the new designation:  CD-DT: Downtown Character District.  
 
 
 
 
Xc: Ronald Gaines, P.E. City Administrator 
      Stephanie Houk-Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 

309

Item 29.



310

Item 31.



311

Item 31.



312

Item 31.



313

Item 31.



314

Item 31.



315

Item 31.



316

Item 31.



317

Item 31.



318

Item 31.



319

Item 31.



320

Item 31.



321

Item 31.



322

Item 31.



323

Item 31.



324

Item 31.



325

Item 31.



326

Item 31.



327

Item 31.



328

Item 31.



329

Item 31.



330

Item 31.



331

Item 31.



332

Item 31.



333

Item 31.



334

Item 31.



335

Item 31.



336

Item 31.



337

Item 31.



338

Item 31.



339

Item 31.



340

Item 31.



341

Item 31.



342

Item 31.



343

Item 31.



344

Item 31.



345

Item 31.



346

Item 31.



347

Item 31.



348

Item 31.



349

Item 31.



350

Item 31.



351

Item 31.



352

Item 31.



353

Item 31.



354

Item 31.



355

Item 31.



356

Item 31.



357

Item 31.



358

Item 31.



359

Item 31.



360

Item 31.



361

Item 31.



362

Item 31.



363

Item 31.



364

Item 31.



365

Item 31.



366

Item 31.



367

Item 31.



368

Item 31.



369

Item 31.



370

Item 31.



371

Item 31.



372

Item 31.



373

Item 31.



374

Item 31.



375

Item 31.



376

Item 31.



377

Item 31.



378

Item 31.



379

Item 31.



380

Item 31.



381

Item 31.



382

Item 31.



383

Item 31.



384

Item 31.



385

Item 31.



386

Item 31.



387

Item 31.



388

Item 31.



389

Item 31.



390

Item 31.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of August 2, 2021
	210802MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Aviation Day
	Proclamation AviationDay

	Item 3.	Proclamation-Gastroparesis
	2021-09_Gastroparesis_Month

	Item 4.	Proclamation-Quota of the CV
	2021-08-19_QuotaOfTheCedarValleyDay

	Item 5.	Bani's Tobacco Hearing
	Bani&#39;s-Hearing Notice-1st Tobacco Violation
	Bani&#39;s-Hearing Complaint-1st Tobacco Violation

	Item 6.	Prime Mart Tobacco Violation Hearing
	Prime Mart-Hearing Notice-1st Tobacco Violation
	Prime Mart-Hearing Complaint-1st Tobacco Violation

	Item 7.	Prime Mart 1 Tobacco Violation Hearing
	Prime Mart 1-Hearing Notice-1st Tobacco Violation
	Prime Mart 1-Hearing Complaint-1st Tobacco Violation

	Item 8.	Pieters Resignation-Housing Commission
	Lindsay Pieters Resignation-Housing Commission

	Item 9.	Boards and Commissions
	2021-08-04_ACB_AppointWoodHoekstra
	Hoekstra
	Wood
	2021-08-04_UtilBoardPrideaux
	Utilities - Prideaux 4-6-21
	Utilities - Prideaux - Questionnaire 7-6-21

	Item 10.	COW Minutes - 8/2/21
	08-02-21 Committee of the Whole Minutes FINAL

	Item 11.	Tobacco Violations-Acknowledgement/Settlement Agreements
	Landmark-Council Packet Materials
	Metro Fuel-Council Packet Materials

	Item 12.	Temporary Sign Request-7213 Nordic Dr.
	1. Randall&#39;s Bull sign Hillton Garden Inn
	2.  Randalls Cow - Hilton Garden Inn

	Item 13.	Liquor Beer 8-9-21
	Liquor Beer 8-9-21

	Item 14.	Admin Policy No. 7
	ADM07councilmtgprocedures-RED LINED.08.16.21

	Item 15.	Fire Grant
	1816_001

	Item 16.	Custodial Services Agreement-Fresh Start
	1936_001

	Item 17.	Joint Funding Agreement - USGS River Gauge
	1. 2022 River Gauge Agreement Memo
	2. Letter, Agreement &amp; Invoice

	Item 18.	Bid - 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project
	1. Low Bid - 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill (Final)
	2. QuestCDN Bid Tab

	Item 19.	Bid - 2021 Seal Coat
	1. Memo Low Bid - Seal Coat 2021
	BID TAB - Seal Coat - 2021

	Item 20.	Contract - 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project
	1. 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Memo
	4320_001
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Liability Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	Item 21.	Contract - 2021 Permeable Alley Project
	1. 2021 Permable Alley Memo
	2. Form of Contract - Signed
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Liability Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	Item 22.	Contract - 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project
	1. 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Memo
	4305_001
	3. Certificate of Liability Insurance
	4. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	5. Form of Proposal

	Item 23.	Contract - 2021 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. 2021 Sidewalk Assessment  Memo
	2. Form of Contract - Signed
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond - Signed
	4. Certificate of Liability Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	Item 24.	Contract - Cyber Lane Extension
	1. Cyber Lane Extension Memo
	2. Form of Contract - Cyber Lane Extension
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond - Cyber Lane Extension
	4. Insurance - Cyber Lane Extension
	5. Form of Proposal - Cyber Lane Extension

	Item 25.	Agreement-Amperage Marketing for FY22 Digital Advertising
	1. Memo to Mayor and Council 07-22-21
	2. Amperage contract
	3. Exhibit A
	4. Exhibit C
	5. AMPERAGE Certificate of Insurance 8.4.21

	Item 26.	Community Development Block Grant - Grant Administration and Technical Services - Federal Fiscal Year 2021 (City FY2022)
	1. Council memo 8-6-21
	2 Agreement signed &amp; exhibits

	Item 27.	HOME Investment Partnership Program - Technical Services
	1. Council memo 8-6-21
	2 Agreement signed &amp; exhibits

	Item 28.	CHN-Site Plan Review-2415 Franklin St
	1_CC Staff report 2415 Franklin St
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. Land use property sketch
	4. 2415FranklinParking Colored Image 7-12-21
	5. 2415 Franklin Letter of Intent

	Item 29.	Set PH-Establish CD-DT Zoning District
	1. Memo.set public hearing.DT Code and rezoning

	Item 31.	Bills & Claims-8/16/21
	1 Daily Invoices 081621
	2 Council Invoices 081621

	Bottom

